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Addendum - IV
K C TAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Ta
The Members
Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Dpinion

Wi have audited the accomparying Ind AS fingnclal statements of Central Mine Planning &
Design Institute Limited (“the Company”}, which comprise the balance sheet as at 3151 March
2023, and the statement of #rofit and Loss (including Other Comprebensive Incomel,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash Nows for the year then ended, and
notes to the Ingd AS financial staterments, including 3 summary of significant accounting
policies amdd other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “ind AS financial
staterments”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
s, and based en the consideration of reparts of the other awditors, the aforesaid Ind A%
financial statements give the infoemation regquired by the Act in the manner so reguired and
givee true and {ar wew in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted n
India, Including the Ind A%, of the financial positian of the company as at 31st March, 2023
and its financial performance including ather compréhensive income, its cash flow and the
statement of changes in equity far the year ended on that date,

Basis for Openion

wie condscied our awdit of the IND AS Hinancial statements in accordance with the Standards
an Audilmg 15As5] specified under soction 143]10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Qu
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilitios
for the Audit of the Ind A% Financial Statements seetian of our report, We are independent ol
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant te cur audit of
the ind A% fnancial statements undar tho provisions of the Campanies Act, 2013 and the Bules
thereunder, and we have falfilled gur other ethical responsibilitios in accordance with thesye
reqguirements and the Code of Crhics. We believe that the sudit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and approprigie to provide o basls for our gpinion on the Ind A5 financal
stalements

Emphasis of Matters

W draw atteation to the lollowing matters
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a} Balances of Loans (Mote Mo 8], other financial assets [Note Mo 9), other current assets
(Mate Mo 11), other non-cuerent assets (Note No 104, trade payables {Note Mo 19),
trade receivables (MNote Mo 13), other financial liabilities [Note Mo 20] and other
current liabilities (Mote Na 23| have not been eonfirmed in mast of the cases. They
also Include old balances Mying since last several years pending for  final
adjustment/square-up i the booki of accoumts. Consequential impact eon
confirmation [ reconciliation/ adjustment of such balances, if any, are not currentiy
ascertainable,

Cur pginian is not modified iv respect of this matter
Key Audil Matters

Key awdit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Ind A% financial statements of the current period. These
matters wore addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a
whale, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communscated in our report

| 5. | Key Audit Matters ‘Auditar’s Response

Mo
|
: |
1 assessment of contingent ltabilities & its  Principal Audit Procedures:
provisions n respect of certain litigations
including direct and indirect taxes, varkdus
claims  filed by other parties  not

Quwr audit was focused on analyzing the
facts  of subject matter  wnder
acknowledged as debt, consideration and Judgmaonts/
interpretation of relevant tas,

A high level of judpment is required in
estimating the level of provisicning The
company's assessment is supported by the
facts af matter, their awn judgment, past
experience, and advice from legal and
independent  tax  eonsultant  wherevar

= Obtaining List of contingent
{izbilities including direct
taxfindirect tan/vardous claims
filed by othor parties

s  Examining on test check basis,
the recent orders and/or |
communication received fmm:
warious Tax authorities) judscial

considered nNeLessgny Agcordingly,
wnexpecied  adwerse  oulcormes may
significantly  smpact  the company's

reported profit and net assets. Associsted forums and follow up

uncertainty  relating o the outcome therean,

requires  spplication  of judEment  in & Understanding  the

interpretation of law, status of the litigati
assonsments

3“ FLOOR, PARAS COMPLEX, NEAR AKASH INSTITUTE, CLUB ROAD, RANCHI - 834001
Mail Id : fca.kctanil@gmail.com Mob. No. +91 - 9031008947




* Annual Report & Accounts 2022-23

K C TAK & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Refor Mote 33 piara 4ia) to the Ind A% | * Evaluating the m.,—_;nrt of the
Financial Statements. subject matter under

‘ consideration with reference to |
the grounds presented therein
and avallableé independent legal
{ tax adwice

= HRewew and analysis of the
contentions of the eompany
through discussion, callection of
details of the subject mattor
under consideration, the likely
CulCome and Conseuent
potential outflows on  those
is55UEs,

| Audit Conclusion:

| Dur procedures did not identify any
material exceptions.

Information Other than the Ind A5 Financial Statements and Auditer's Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for ihe other
inlormation, The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Dizcussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Beard's Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corparate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but doos nat
include the Ind A5 financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Dur opinion an the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form af assurance conclusion thereasn.

In cannection with our audit of the ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read
the pther information and, in doing <o, consider whether the other information s materialky
inconsistent with the Ind AS linancial statements or our knowledge obtained n the audit or
atherwiie appears to be materlally misstated,

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other inlarmation; we aro raquirgd 1o report that fact, As the Dther Information has
not been provided to us, we have nothing to report in this regard.

required o communicate the matter to thate charged with governance.
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Rasponsibility of Management for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company & Board of Directors it rosponsible far the matters stabed in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2003 {"the Act” | with respect to the prepasaticon of these Ind A% financial
statements that giva 8 true and fair view of the (nangial position, financial parformance,
||H:|u:]|-:15 giher comprehansie lncame mod cash flows and changios in equity of the Campany
in mesardance with the sccounting principles geserally accepted n India, including the Indian
Aocounting Standards [Ind AS) specilied under sectipn 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
issued thareunder. THiS responsibility alen ineludes masmienance of adequate accounting
records in gocordance with the provisions of the AC Tor safegearding of the assety of the
Coampany arid for preventig and detecting frauds and othar irrepularities; salaction and
spplieation of appropriate Implementation and maintenance of accounting policles; making
Judaments and estimates that are reasonable el pfudent; and dasign, implementation and
mamtenance of adeguate mtormal fimancial contsols, that were operating effectively for
erserng the aocurAcy end completeness of the -ar.m:uutlng records, relevant 1o the
praparatizam and presentstion of the ind AS financial statements that give o true and fdr view
ang o e Trow om matena misstatament, whath i) dud to braud or arror

in preparing the [nd A5 Tinancial statemants, managemeant s responsible for assecsing e
Company's ability to oantinue as o pOEE CORCan, |:||54:I-|:|5Ing. s gpplatle, matters relatad 1o
going conceim and uskng the going concem basis of accounting unless managemant elther
intonds to liguidate the LOMPany ar o teade aoerplions or has no reallalic allersathee bot 10
o Lo

The Hoard of Directors are also recpansible lor overseeing the compoany’s financisl reparang

process

Auditor's Respansibility for the Audit of tha Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectwis are D obiain reasonable assurance aboul whether the nd 25 Tingnois
statemanis a5 & whale are free from materal misstatément, whather due to fraud or soror
and tossee 30 Buditor sreport that includ es our oginkn. Rezsonable assurance |5.a high level
ol aswrance; bt |5 not a2 guarantes that an sudit condectéd in accordonce with S4s will
abwiiys delecl a materal misstatomant whep 2 exi- Misstatemeants can arice from fraed af
error and are considered msterind o, Indigidhaally or in the agregate, rh.;--,. could reasansbly
be expecivd to influence the economic decislons of users taken on the basls of thase ind A5
fimancinl stalerments

A part ol an audlit in accordance with S8s, e pxercise profesdonal judgment and maintain
protécsional skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

ihernily el 2ttt tnn ey o Fraiel i i sstatemeTt of the nd BS Tmanciol sla
whother die 10 Faud of &rear, design and parform audit procedores responsive to thije
and obtaw uudit evidence that s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
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The risk of nol detecting & material misstatement resulting from Iraud is highar than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, mtentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overrige of intemal contral.

Obtain sn understanding of internal financial controls refevant to the awdi @ arder to design
apdit protoduros that are appropriate in the croumstances. Under sectien 143[3)00) of the
A1, we arp also redponsiblp for expressing owr opinian on whether the Company has
adeguate intermal nanciad contreds system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls

Evalunte the appropristeness of accounting polickes used and the reasonablensss of
accounting estamates and related discloseres made by management,

» Conclude on the apprapriateneis of management's use of the going concem bLasis of
accounting and, based on the audit evdence obtalned, whether a material uncertamty eaists
related to events or conditlons that may cast significent doubt on the Company’s ability Lo
comiiue gs a going concarm, I we conclude that & material uncertanty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our suditor’s report o the related disclosuses in tha ind A% linancial
statements ar, I such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Dur conelusions are
based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of cur auditor's report, Howeser, futuse
eyents or conddions may cause the Company 10 Cease 10 CoNBNUE a5 8 BHing CONCE

Evaluate the averall presentation, struciure and content of the Ind A% financial statemaents,
including the disclosures, and whethes the Ind AS financal statements represent the
winteriying trans<ctions and gwents in 3 manper that achieves fair presentation,

Materialily 5 the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial stalements that,
indiwidually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economéc declsions of a reasonalbly
knowledgeable user of the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factess in (i) planning 1he scope of our awdsl wark and
in evaluating the results of ow work, and {iI) 10 evaluate the effect of any kdentified
misstatemants in the Ind AS Binancial statements.

Wa commanicate with those changed with governance regarding, among other enatters, the
planned spope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any skgnificint
deficiencios in internal control that we wentfy during our audit.

We alsa provide those charged with povernance with 8 statemant that we have compdied with
relevant ethical roquisements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 4
relationships and other matiers thal inay feasonably b thowght th boar on our
independence, and whera applcable, related rafeguards.

From the matters communicated with thase charged with governanoe, we determine 1
matters that were of most signilicance in the audit of the Ind AS financlal ststements
current period and are therefore the key audit matters, YWe descnbe these matters
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auditor's report unless law or regulation prechedes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in estremely rare circumstances, weé determing that a matter showld not be
cormrmunicated in our repart bicause the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expecied Lo outwelgh the public Interest benelits of such communication,

Other Matter

a} Contingent hability of Rs. 202.39 Crores [P.Y, s 173.74 Crored) includes disputed

demands raised by various departments of the Central Government {income Tax,
Service Tax ete.], This amount conicts of principal, interest and penalty as raised up
to the date of the latest demand order. The Interest and penalty for the period from
the latest date of derend order to date of Balance Sheet has neither been calculated
nor included in contmgent liability, Consequentlal Imgact over total amounmt of
contingent liabilty is currently net ascertainable (Note Mo 3B refer para 4{a) 1o the Ing
A5 financial statements.
Further, it also includes legal cases ageinst the company pending betore variows
judicial Terums (Supreme court, High cowrt, arbitratars ¢tc.] against which claims has
besn rased by variows third parties, In the absence of detais of amount af claims, as
raised by the third parties, made availabde by the management, consaquential impact
ower the total amount of contiigent Hability if those cases are decided not in favor of
the Comgany s currently not ascertainable (Note No 38 refer para 4(a) to the ind A5
financial statements,

b} It was pbsenad that debtors include old outstanding balances of Rs, 32.86 Cr.iP. ¥. As,
6711 Cr ) against Cil subsidiaries, pending for realization far more than 1 yedr, As per
chrowlar no CILMOT/ 20213059 ssued by OL; i} Payment of 208% of basic amount of bill
walue and 18% GST (i.e., total 75% of total kill value) thereon to be paid by subsidiaries
ta CRMEBD within 15 dows of receipt of Bll; i} Bill reconciliation in Future shall be
through a pertal and CMPDI shall intimate the action on portal and communicate with
subsidiarias; il Qutstanding bills for more than one year shall be reviewsd jointly by
the CWIPEI and the concerned subsidiary. However, during the course of sur audit it
was observed that the bills raised to subsidiaries are not being recovered as per the
above-mentioned circulsr (ssuad by CIL. Consaguential impact on conflemation |
reconciliation) adjustment of such balances, if amy, are not currently ascertainable,

Cir Cpimion 18 net modified with regard to above

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required ander section 1435} of the Companies Act 2013, we give inthe “An -
A", a statement on the Directicos/ Additional Directions issurd by the Comptrolls
Auditor General of ndia after complying the suggested methodalogy of Au
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acticsn faken thereon and it impact on the actounts and the Ind AS financial
statoments of the Company

£ - As reguired by the Companies {auditar's Report] Order, 2020 [ “the Order™] issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 1d3-|:11_| of the Act, we grve in
“Annexure B” 3 statament on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order
1o the exient applicable

3 Asrequired by Section 143{3} of the Act, we report that:

i Wi have 5uught aiid obtained all the mnforrmalion and Explana_ﬂr_'m; wihich o
the best of our knowdedge and belief wereg necessary for the purposes of our
gudit of the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements read with a5 reportad in
clause (] of the "Emphasis of Matters” paragraph above

b In ouf opinion proper books of account a3 required by law relating 1o
preparation of the aloresasd ind A5 financial statements have been kept by the
Company sofar as appenrs frem our examinabion of those books

c. The Balence Sheet, the Statement of Proflt and Loss including Orher
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Change i Equity dealt with by this Report are In agreemient with the books of
Accowiits

d, Inowr apinkan, v don | have any observatkn which has an adverse umpact on
functigning of the Campany

£ In cur opinion, the aforewid Ind AS financial statements comply  with  the
Ind AS specfled under section 133 of the Act read with relevant Fulé (ssued
thiereumdes;

[ In pursuance of the Motification No. G.5.R #63(E) dated 05.06.2015 issued by
the Minlstry el Corporate affairs, section 1083} of the Act, pertaining to
disgqualification of Directars is not applicebie be the Government campany,

£ Wedon't have any qualification, reservation or adverse remark relating to the
mamtenance of accounts and the matters connected therewith

i, With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrals awver fii
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such ©
refer £ our separate Aeport in “Annexure C°. Our repoil expross
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uiimedified opinion on the sdequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company's intarnal financial controls aver financlal regporting,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
gocordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
s amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given 1o us:

i The company has disclosed its panding litigations ender Additional
Note 38 ol the-ind A% financial staterment. The impact, if any, of thase
litigations will be given effect to as and when the same are
determined fLetyled

i, The Company has made provisions a5 required vnder the applicable
law or sccounting standards, for materisd foresaaable losses if any, an
bpiig lerm contracis and the company did not have any darivative
comtracts

dl. s per the written representation recatved from the manasgement,
there were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the
Investor Educatian and Protection Fund by the Company

iw. [a) The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief no funds have been advanced or loaned or
Invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any othe:
sources or kind of tunds) by the comgany to ar in any other pevson or
antity, including foreign  entity  (“intermediares” |,  with  the
understandmg, whethier recordad in writing or otheraise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
parsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company [“UlItimate Beneficiaries”] or provide any guarantee,
seCurily or thi like on behalf of the Ukimate Benaficiarias;

ib] The managemaent has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief no funds have been received by the company
froem any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”).
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othensise, the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities dentified In amy manner whatsoever by a6 on behalf
of the Funding Party [“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantea, security of the ke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

ic] Based on such awdit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and spgropriate in the croumstances, sothing has come
our notice that has caused to believe that representations undes 5
clause (i} and [ii] ol Rule 11{e), as provided under (8} and [b) ab
cowitain any matorial misstatemant,
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v. The dividend declared and pald during the year by the company is in
complianice with section 123 of Companies Act 2013

For K C Tak & Co.
Chertered Accountorits
Firm's registration number: 0002160

L]
v !.I B
CA Anll Jain Ranch )
Plaga: Ranchi Partner P i g
Date: 03/05/2023 i Ma,; 075005 %‘hz( Ay
UDIN: 230790058GYQBK2530 e ey
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Annexure “A° referred o in poregraph 1 of “Repert on Other Legal and REgUitany
Requiremments” of independent Auditor's Report an the Ind AS finoniciol stotements for the fior
e yeor ended March 312023, we report that:

part- |

5 Birections
Mo

Yhethier the company has system
I edE (0 prodess  olf e
ARLOUNTLING Frafsadtioms throwgh 17
syatems s

If yes, the implicotion of processing
Of QCOMARG LraAsactions oty
T iysterms o indegeity of Hhe
GECRURLE @lang Wil fhe fnanciol
imphicaisons, f anpy may be stated.

=

VWhether there 15 anp restrecliring

Auditor's reply

There s o system (n ploed e process ol the moreris)
pecounting Erdnsection and recerding of all wnderlying
business tronsochions is dome i I3 SAP-ERP Software,
| Accordingly, there are no implications on the integrity of the
droounfs. The informotion/Dote s flowing from vorious
| mrdiles and coptured iy the financials through sutomation
winder SAF for the processes ke Finopchal Accounting amd
Contralling (FICQ), Soles and Distrbution (3800, Moterinl
Manogement (MM, Human Copital Manogement (HCM),
Production enning [PRL Profect System [PS] and Plont
Waintenonce (PRI

As per Informration and explanotions glven to ws Post
completion of stoblifzation phase an 31° March 2022, the
sprtem 5 under ARC phoss,

| Buring 1he rourne of oor pudit Y was observed thak, |
fallewing octivities ore performed, outside 5485

| A eapiained to us, SAP integiation of Blometric ottendance |
is owallobie bui die fo integration issee with NIC, présently
the pttendonce {5 gither being mointoined moenoally oF
through Biometric systemn serwing o source dota which (s
finolly captured in SAP.

in respect of the activities performed outside SAP, as obove,
in our opinfon there Iz ao materiol fincncal implications,

i As per I;qu.rmnt_lnr: n'.rrd. explamations g'.irer?m us, there 4 no

of on cxsting loan or casesof | cose of any restructuring of on existing foan or cases of
witver  write-off of debis /Mlomns /0 weoiver write-aff of debts S inans S intared etc. moge by o

interest ¢fc. made by a lender [0
the cavnpuny due to the compuny's
mrebulty fo repgyp the banf i yes

Ife |r.'|".|'.."i.'.|ul WSl Ty b

stared.  Whedher such oeses are
propeely aocounted ford (o code,
| Temder v & gavermrrent company,

fender to the compoany due t0 the company's iminbility fo
repay the loam,
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then  thés  direction 735 r_u'_'-.u.
opplicodle for stotutory ewditar of
tender company

i | Whether funds | As per Informotion ond explonations given to us, the
| receivedirecavable for  speciic | compony Bas not received/mo recelvable ony funds/grants
achemes  fram  centrolfsiote | except ogainst deteiled & promotional drilling, R&D & 5&T
ggencisy were prapetly proounted ! vl NIVIET a5 mandioned in clawse 2 & 3 af Pare-t - Additional
forfutiized as per itd rterms ond | oirections {Annexure = ‘A'L
congitiorss

List rivr cerves Oof devinfioa

Part-ll - Additional directions

5, | Directions o [ Action taken B Auditor's reply

Mo

I | Whathe: 3y -|:.|'l|-3|:|er||:|r!-p|: As por  information and  explanations  given 0 U5
assesument and certificatlon | independent gssessment and  certificotion of  migration
al migration gprocess of data | process of dote from Coalnet povtal to SAP had pot Been
fram Cosinet partal 1o 53AF dhone. As-iformed [0 US, the matter i token up ar Cil Il
hiad Bedn dons,

7 | Whether esploation  of | As per information and explonations ghén [0 05 there i pa
plocke wan completed (n | MOU between CWPIN and AOC/CILANMET. CRIPDI Is the
gomplisnce of MOU  and | nadal agency for all infermation refoted 1o exploration of
graml meceived for detailed | cool and Ngnite in the country. CMPDI undertoke (e
and  promational  drilling | sctheities of detolled and promotionol drifling s per the
gtilized  and  accounted | project/blocks stnctioned/opproved by MEI'CT"GI'...-’HMFT
properly, List phe Canes of | gither by itself or through MECL and private parties throdgh
devlsLion MOLU and benderi

O the bosis of our examingtion of the samples on test chinel
boits, i wos ohserved thot explorotion of blocks wis
completed in complignce of MOU and grant recelved for
detoiled and promotional drifling ore being wtilized and
accounted for properiy.

[3 | Whether fund meceived for I As per the information and explonation provided bojl
RED and 5T wera properly | and 58T profects pre approved/sonctioned by the
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accounted forfutiized as pej
terms and conditben? Lise

thie cases of deviatlons

bosed on the proposol subwmitted by the wnplementing
agency/institirte to CMPOL, CMPD! makes on estimoie af
fund requirement for ail the ongoing or new RED/SET
projects ond moke o comolidoted reguizition from MOC/CIL
Unee the fupd @5 recelved, CAMPDY disburse the fund o
implementing agency/Institute in varieus instolfments bosed
on the pragress of the projects, Once the project Is complere
and Praject completion repart Is approved by the techmica)
commities, Implementing  agency/finstibute  submit  the
utihieation certificote to CMPDV amd refund the wospent
amaunt of the fund recelved on such projects to CMPDY nlong
with the interest egred on those funds.

vy the bosis of our exomimetion of the somples on test chock
bagls, it wos observed that the fund recelved for BED ond S&T
were properly occounted forfutiioed o5 per ternms and

conditiom

3“ FLOOR, PARAS COMPLEX, NEAR AKASH INSTITUTE, CLUB ROAD, RANCHI - 834001
Mail Id : fca.kctanil@gmail.com Mob. No. +91 - 9031008947




Annual Report & Accounts 2022-23

K C TAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Annenire — "B roferred o in paragrosh 2 of “Repart gn Other Legal ond Begulatory
Aeqirements"of independent Auditor's Repovr an thea fnd A% fnantlal stotaments for the far
e yarar enaed March 31, 2073, we repard Rt

I a) {4y During the course of our audii, i1 wat observed that the Campany has generadly
mantained proper cecords.of showing  full  particulars® of Property - plant  and
|.:I.'|||||I||'|'|||

[Bi The company has maintainesd proper rocerds showing Tull pacticslars of intangle
PLTTEL

bl According 16 the information a5 givel 16 us, the managemant has conductod the
Phygsical vernfication af Fised Assets as per CIL policy, &t ressenabie intarvate by its duly
constitated team 1or the perpose. As informed to us, no material discrepancies have

bii=n noticod an sLICh werfheatinn

) Accorling §0 {he wifarmation et asplanatien gleen oo, the title deedy of all
imimiy At properties (sther than properties where the company is lessee amd lease
agree meots are duly execated in fasor of lease) dictlosied in the financial sEatements
Arg Bl inovhe nieme ol thie company

Howsever, duling the course of our oudlt, ttle deed of lond Boldings in respect af
CATRPOr R (Axansel], could net be produced before ws for owr venification Further,
feuseholg fong of Kudurmiels wolued of B L48 o, shows uander other fong (Mate Na,
;_.I Rrding te by resdwed frome 12,0023, .ﬁ..'!‘hﬂ'ﬂg']'l,. thet st Mars Been peipreved in
COFD meeting dofed 20.03, 2023 for revewal,

1d] sccordging to the information & cxplanations as provided to us and a5 observad by
wh, no revaluntion of Progerty, Flamt and Equipment (indluding right 1o use auets) or
intangibhe sssets of both durmg the year hias been cacrigd out by the tompany

el Aciordmg (o e inlormation B esplanations as grovided o us, no procesding kas
Beadi Initiatud or panding agams] the eempany for h.nl:hng any b mani pragery wde
the bempni transactions (peohibivion) act, 1988 (45 of 1%ER} and rules made

Thereandai

1 Al A pher Lhe palicy o the company, physical verifeation ol stoses and spares s done at
reasunable ntervals by s extermst agency duly appointed by the company and a repan
o positran of stock as-an 31st Dec 2027 has bBeen ablainsd by the armpEry . b oo
apimian, i covarpge and procedure of such verification by the Waragarhenl |
appropriale; no discregancies ol 10% or more 0 the aggrapatd far mach clacz ol
ivveniory were noticgd on such venification
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ikl Mo warking capatal fimit kas b sapoiiened (o the Company diring any poirt of
timeod the vear from any Bamks) Finandal Institutoing

[iii] B cwehing 1o thig infarmarion and scplanations pen to s, the Company hes ool made
mwesiment provided =ny guaraniee or security or granied any loams ot sdvances i the
natude of Inan, secured or unsecured, 19 companies, firms, Limted lizhiity partersha

ar iy otfer partbes darng the vear

lid] fewinding 19 the information and uxplarations geen o ve, the Company hos nat
granted lpans, madi investments. prosded goarantess or seounty as definsd 0 seclion
1ES anid 186 ol Companses &cl

i Thes Caimpany Bas pet accepled gy depasa in terms ol the divectives issued by Dhs
Femeree Bank ool India and the provisions of Sectéons 733 to 76 or any ofher relevant
provisems of the Comparnes Aot and thie riles framed there under. Howevar, balancas
i respect ol smnoist received @ the coerse of, or for the purpose of the business afl the
Compay a5 Earmest Mongy Deposls, Secwiity Depoats and Sdwamce Deposins froom
Listomery £ Others, the Company o af the view that thase deposits do not-come undei

the purview af the Compannes- (Acceptance of Deposits) Rubes 2014,

(L1 H] Wo lavd irnaitly raviesiod The caul recardommmtamed by the company as proseribad
by thit Cambra GoweErnment under section 1S (1) af the Companies Aot X013 and are
Ul aspernion Ul prisns Tsoe e presoribed accownts and reoprds Bave Bbeen made
and mamisimedl. Hpweser, we have 00t rnade a detailed exsaminatiaon af the coss recarcs
wikh bl weiw o determine whathior thay ang acciarate oF complale

Bl @) Accordmg ko the imlormation aisd explanations geen 19 w8 and on the basis of cur
exarnalion of the records of the Compgany, arnounls deducted) accroed in this tooks
il ocegant i respedt ol undspuied stafutory dues including Goads & Sesvice Tax
prouident lurd, Employees Stte ngurdnce, incametox, service. tas, pension fund
prafestannal tax and other material datutony dues generally hiawe besn regulary

deposited during the vess by the Compainy with the approoriate asthorfes

Rcording 10 tha. nformataga @id exploiations’ given 1o us, no undisputed anvpune
pagal:dle n respecy ol Goods: & Sei v T, prrebde it haidd, Eiripdyas Satg fnauancg
mcome-En service tax penvicn fung, professionad taa and other material statiory dies
were i arrears as-at 31 March 2023 bar & g o nsgen 1hae s inonths fram the dobs
thay bicama payahil
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(i)

fix}

(T

(b Statutory dues rieferrad o i cub-clause [a) wehich Bave el been degosited on
account of Ay d'HI]'LI-TE. e amounty invalvaed and e farum where such chispuite
pording is menticned "Appendizx-1"

"-':1.I:I=I|lllt: to thie Infarmianions & edplanations as provided td us, no tranzaction has been
sdartified or regosted by the tax autborities under 1as evsessmants under the Ineame
Tax &1, 1961 (43 of MWE1) which requires to be surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year.

(a) Tha Company has not defaulied in repayment of ahy lxans or other barrowings or
I Ehie pyrment of interest throon

ib] According to the Information & explanatsons as provided to s, The carmpany Hay pod
beton declared as walful defauliee by ony bank or financial institution or othei len d

L) Arcodding ta the mformation & explanations ax provided to us, no term loans weri
appiived for the purpase Tfor which e losns swere obtained during the yaa

[d} A cordimg ta the informatlon & explanations 55 prowdad ta us 1he coam pany hias not

ratspdr any und on snort Teem B wluch have been-utilieed as long-térm basii

|} Sccording to the information & explanatbons as provided tous, the Company has aot
takan any funds from-any entity o person on account of or to meet the obilgations ol
Its-spbsadiafios, AssOEkites o jiint wentures

||:I..-'A.I cordinng 1o tho informatson & explanakons as provichked Loous, the compa ny has not
raised wiy leans during the year on the pledge of securities held in ity subsidzanes, jome

venlures or grsoceate company,

[} At cirdhing Lo the nlormation and explanations given tows and on the basis ol boaks
and records axarined by v the Company did nor rakse any maney by way of initiad
mublic. ofter or uriher pubbc offer (including $ebt nstruments) during the . yaar
Accirdinily, paropgraph 3 |x) para (ak al the Order is nacapplicable

(b} According to tha ndoomathen aed gaplanstichs given 1o us and on the basis of boaks
and records examined by us, the Company has nat made any praferentiai alfotment o
st placement of shares or convertible debentures [Fully, partially or opticdslly
convertible] during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 |kl para (B of the Crder 5 not
apmlicabbs

ja] Aceording 1o the Infarmanion sl eeplandtlions EiWen teus, no material fraud by the
Cornga vy ansd aivy frdud Ga e Coanpany by 6 afficers and emplogees has been notic)

et rerpraarbeel durkng the year
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|uii]

VR

L]

E

[E301]

el According tethar inloemation & explanations as provided to 65, ne report unger sul-
secticn |12] of section 143 of the Commpanies act has been filed by the auditars in form
ADT-4 ds proscribed under rule 13 of companies (audit and auditors) rules, 28614 with
ithe central governmaend.

icd Aa g thig information B explanation provided to us, the company has nat recenid
ary wehisthe- bloawver compdaants

welin our opinkon and according 1o the information and ERplanatiing given 1o us, the
Company 15 nok a Midhi company. Accordingly, paragraph: Axii] of the Order is pot
aoplicable

Lo i G opinion and accarding to the inforeeation and explan ations given to us, the
Comgany i3 notb o Midhi company |I'I.I_'-!'I:|rd|f'|E:|!||l paragraph 2[xii] of the Crdar & not
apipicatybe.

o) I g apinian and accarding to the information and esplanations gieen 10 us, the
Company is nat a Midhi company. Socordingly, paragraph 3xii) of the Crdar b sob
applecatiip

Accorching to the information and . explanations given 1o us amd based on our
eaannation of the recdrds of The company, Transactions with e redated paries ane in
coanpliance with bectesn 177 and Section 188 of the Companses Act, 2013 where
apphoabia. and details of such lransactiens have been disclosed in the financial
sEatvimaents as regquised by applicable scoosnting standards.

{a} In por opinicn, and according to information and explanotions given to oL, the
company has an intearnal audit system commensarate sath the sze and natere of s

Businass

b1 ¥es, the raports of the Intemnmal audivoss for the period under audit were considered
|1 ("N

Actording to the infarmation ard explanations given 1 s the Company s not
chtered inte non-cash transactions with dirgctors or pardans connected with him
Aecordingly, paragraph 3{ev] of the Order i not applicable.

@ The Comgany & ol required 1o be registered under section 4514 of the Rogfd
Bank ol India &0 1934, Accordingly, Clause 30wy of the ardar is-not applicabla
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Lswii]

| =i |

|x1s}

[EEY

|xxi|

Place: Ranchi Porrngr
Dare: 0270520088 B Mo DFHIE

&) According to the information & ssglanations as provided te us, the Company fas
nof conducted any non-hanking or houwsing finance activities

1ok The compary is not a Core investicent Campany (CIC] as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of india

1d} The company & not a Core investmem Company (CIC) a5 defined in the regulations
made by thie Reserve Bank of India neither it has more (than ane CH

According to the Information & ceplamstions as provided 1o 05, the Company has not
incurred any cash losses inthe financial year and in the immadiately greceding financia
WEAL .

Accarding to the information & explanations as providid to us, there is no resignation
of the statutory auditors during the yeaaj

I our opmien, and according toontormation and explanatons gren 1o us, and on the
Leases ol the fimancial ragios, ageing and expected dates af realization of financial ascets
and payment of finencial liabilities, other information sccompanying the financial
statenmsents, mo material ancertainty exist a3 on the date of the audit regort tha
CORMIAny 15 not capaile of meeting it akilities eeistng at the date of balamee shiot as
and when they fall dus within a pediod of ane year friom the balance sheet dato

{a] In rezpect of fngaing project or other than ongelng projects, the company did not
Fiawe any Balance of unspent amount réguired to be transferred 1o o fund specified in
sthedule Wil to the Companies Ac, 20132 within o period of 3 months of the capiry of
the fipancial pear in compliznce with second proviso to sub-saction (8] of section 125
of the said-act;

This cleuse i not applicable

For B C Tak & Cao,
Charlered Accountonts
Firm's registration numbern QU0216C

I
e
CA Anil kzin

LDIN: 2 3079005 BOY QBRY
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Annexure — "C" referred 1o n paregraph 3rh) of “Report on Other Legal and Reguiatary
Requrements ~of independent Audifors Hepart an the Ind A3 finoncial stafements for the Fas
the pear erded March 37, 2023, we reporr phar;

Report on the Intermal Flnancal Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companles Act, 2013 |“the Act”)

We have audited the intermal linancial controbs over fimpneal reporting of "Contral Mine
Planning & Design Institute Limited' ("ibe Company”] as of 31 March 2023 in gonpenction
with our sudit of the Ind A% finanasl stalements of the Cormpany for the vear ended on that
ilate

Panapement’s Responsibility for Iaternal Financal Controls

The Company’ s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internzl fin ancial
controls based on the alernal contrgl over financial reparting criteria established by the
Loangany cansidering the essentidl componants of intarnal control stated in the Guidance
Mete o Aumi of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Regorting issued by the institute
of Charored Accountants of India U'BCAIYL These responsibifities include the demimn
implpmestahion snd maimtenance of adequate internad financial controls that wers operating
cHfectively for enzuring the orderly and efficsent conduct of its business; inciuding aéheranoe
to company's policies, the safeguarding of it5 assets, the prevention and detection of fraes
amyed greors, the' scowracy and completesess of 1the accounting racards, and the timely
pregaration of rellatle fingnckal infonmation, 35 required under the Companies &ct 2013

Auditors’ Avsponsibility

Udr respons:bility & s expréss an opinion gn the Company's internal financial controls gyer
linanckal reparting based on oo aedit We comducted our audit in accordance with the
Guldance Mote on Audit ol Internal Financial Controls Ower Financial Reporting [ibe
“Guidance Mote”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 1041 and deamed to be proacribad
nder section 163{10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
irterniad financial controls, both applicakle to an audit of internal Financlal Cantroli md, both
issised by the Institute of Charteéred Accountants of india. Those Standards snd the Guidance
hote reguine Lat wie coomgly withe ethical reguirements and plan and perfarm the audit to
Gblain ivasorable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
linzncial feparting was ostablished and maintained and if such éontrals operated elffectivel
vy all widesial fespecly,

Dur audit involves performing pricedures (o obtain sudit evsdence about the adequacy of the
intermal financial contrals system ouer fniscial ragarting ond thoir operating £iectivene g
Cur audit of antornal financial controbs ower financial reporting included ohtaini
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andior's judgmenl, including tire assesanent of the risks of material misstatament ol the kw
AL financial statements, whather due to fieed or error

W believe Thid the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and appeopriate to provide
@ basis for our audhl opindon on the Company's internal financial controls systern over fimancial
Fepoaling

hteaning of Internal Financlal Coatrols Over Financial Reporting

A gpmpany L miternal financial controt over inancial reporting ica process designed bo providi
rgasonahle aLsiarance regarding the raligknlity af feancial raporting and tha preparation ol
Ind &5 fimpncial statements for esternal purgoses in accordance with genendly accepiied
BoCountang prciphes A compa R tinancial control over fingncial reporting Includes
thoss polcies and proceduras that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
rpasanatle dotaif, accurately and fairly redtect the transactions and dispositions af the assely
of the company; |2 provide reasanable aisurance that transactions are recorded as aecessary
Ly permil greparaticn of ind AS livancial statemmmils in accordance with generally acceptaed
socounting principies, and that receiprs and expenditures of thae campany are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; e 13)
provide reasonalle asturance ragarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorzad
soguisition, uae, or disposition of the company s assets that could have & material effect on
the Ind A5 linancial ctatements.

Inhereat Umitations of Internal Fimanclal Controls Ower Financlal Reperting

Hacause of 1he inharent lmitations of intemal financial contrals. ower financial repgommp
including the possiaility of eallusion oF impropes management override of contrels, matedial
it b ts due Lo errad or fravel oy occur and sot be detected, flse, projections of any
ewaluatin of the mteral financial contools over feancial reposting to future perods are
subpect b the sk thet the intesnal financial control over finencial reporing may become
nadeguate because of changes in conditsons, or that the degree of compliance with the
podicias or procedurss may detesionae

Qpinlan

N gur gpinien, to the best af our vtormaticon and accordmg to the explanatians givon to us,
thie Com pany bas, in all matercal respects; an-adeguate imernal finandal contros systen gver
fimantial reporting and such atermal fmancial controls over financlal feporting were operating

criterla estabilishad by the Company considering the essential components ol intednal
ctated i the Gukdance Mote on Audid of intermal Fimancial Contsols Over Financial &
issued by the Institute of Charterad Accountants of ndia.
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KL TAH

CHEA I T A TR

Hawever, further Imgrovernent i3 reguired o | the dorumenionion af frrErnal fanpepini
Controls of the Company in respoct of i3 risk aasessment process, gk erolsts of Biferent
FuRcianan anse-gnd ncargareling thie process flows of deportmental levels including Fisk
TR REONT i FEs e |.'I_|I INMSLNTREE COveyags, (M 5[r=lr|5|_‘l|.|_l.'|.ll|ﬂ |_-|_f rhg n;.g.-:"_r.__.rl'n.-__; |'.|_|: CONTTraHS L
Fesgent of e eRpeRses, i) conficmatian reconciiotiondiustment of orher fraamicial
GI5CLE, ST curvenl & aanecwment dssels, trade poypbies & recevebies ofher fimanelsl
Nphifhies o oifhes curcent and nen-current hobiites. i) Contral over coddang & -;'.':-m.f--:_,

of attendonyer of proplmeces

Cour genian is 0ot gualilied wn regeect al the abowve maiters

For K C Tak & Co
Chartered Acooumtants
Firm"s registration numbees G002 160

o
CA ARl fain
Place; Ranchi Forfner
Oate: 2005/ 2023 I Mo, 9005
LIEN: 2 30TnBa v DE K 2530
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Appandin- 1" reforred te e ciuse wi to Anmexure =B refarred to in paragrogh 2 of “Repart on (fer
Lege ond Regiselary Requireremts” of independent Auaitars Beport an the dnd A5 fingncial statements

far the far the pear enged Morch 31, 2023

fdature of the
Statute

Ircome Tax &ct,
1961
Income Tax AT,
1961

Imcoms Tax Acl,
1951

Inooime Tax Act

1961

Incorma Tan AL,
1561

Income Tan Add,
1341

Inpame Tax Act,
1961
Incame Tax Al
I96L
tarvice Tan ALt

Service. Tax fct

Service Tax Act

Mature of Dues

healawances of prEar peniod
Bere

Disallowances of {5, Medical
Experses and profit from sale of
FEeTn

Disalliwances of Medical
pxpenses grants to Scheol &
Institutiors. Sparts & Retreation
andd Enwironmont & Tree
Planiation )

Disallowance o C58, Provesion lar
MO, Medicad expenses, grants,
canteen, creche and othay
employes bgnehics

Disalowanges of employes
benefits pxpenies like NOWA,
Esscutivg pay revision, Medical
Expenzes, grants e school &
Institations, spoets & retreation
Disaflowarnges of subscription ty
chuh, funds and grovsien for
giatuity

[ Faruim
whare
dispute iy
pencing

CIT{A)

T CImiAl

OT(&)

E=1

Al

| ermiay

Ousallowances of contingent, funds | CITI4)

and provisom for gratuiy
Casalkrwanicas of Bonus o
commissan, leava encoshmeng,
Erotuily, expensg /s 43b
congribution ta FF & depreciation,
Demand ol arrears of sprvice tax
miterest and paaliy

Demand of Service Tas

Lemand af Serace Tan and
Jnalty

[ comya)

| tharkhand

| High Court
Fharkland

| HlEh Comarl
CESTAT

DET®ALS OF DISPUTED STATUTORY LIABELITIES AS ON 31.03,2023

Pendig perad
ta which the
amoaunt relates

! A¥, 2010-3011

ALY, 2012-2013

T TAY. 20162Mm7

ALY, Z07-201E

Ay, 2018-2019

[ Ay 20192020

AN, 2020-2021

[ X}

[ a.¥. 2021-202

ALY 1990.2005

| a.v. 1998-1959 |

[ Ay, 701314 ta
2017-18

A

|Rs. i

Lrores;

! 1.05

I3

[ 119

[ 3187

55 [17

Ansaunt
Paid
under
pretes]
{Ha, in
Lrares|
(.59

%511

L0
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Management Reply to The Independent Auditors Report for the vear ended 31° March,

2023
EMPHASIS OF MATTER MANAGEMENT COMMENT
a) Balances of Loans (Note No 8), other | In case of Note 8, the amount of Rs
financial assets (Note No 9), other |6 lakh represent interest on
current assets (Note No 11), other | HBA/car loan given to two

non-current assets (Note No 10), trade
payables (Note No 19), trade
receivables (Note No 13), other
financial liabilities (Note No 20) and
other current liabilities (Note No 23)
have not been confirmed in most of
They also
balances lying since last several years
pending for final adjustment/square-
up in the books of accounts.
Consequential impact on confirmation
/ reconciliation/ adjustment of such
balances, if any, are not currently
ascertainable

the cases. include old

employees for which recovery is
already going on. The principal
amount has already been recovered.
There is no objection from any of the
employee  against of
interest as above

recovery

In note 9 — Out of total balance of
91.51 crores, Rs 57.85 crore
represents current account
transaction with CIL. This amount
has already been reconciled and
agreed by CIL. Further the balance
amount of Rs 33.66 crore represent
security deposit paid/ claims
receivable etc. There has not been
any practice to obtain confirmation
for such amount.

In case of note 10, the amount of Rs
7 lakh represents the security
money deposited by CMPDI with MP
Government for allotment of 4.5
hectare  land on
establishment of new drilling camp
in the main basin of Ghoghra halka,
Sarai Tahsil, Singrauli

lease for

Note 13-Letters were sent to all the
debtors for confirmation of balance.
All the subsidiaries of CIL have

confirmed the balance as on
31.03.2023 except CCL . CCL has
confirmed the  balance  upto

30.09.2022. Reconciliation is going
on with CCL as regard dues as on
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31.03.2023.

In general Letters/ mails have
already been sent to the concerned
Domestic vendor/creditors/Debtors
for the confirmation of balances. The
reply has been received from few
parties.

OTHER MATTER

MANAGEMENT COMMENT

a) Contingent liability of Rs. 202.39
Crores (P.Y. Rs. 173.74 Crores)
includes disputed demands raised by
various departments of the Central
Government (Income Tax, Service Tax
etc.). This amount consists of principal,
interest and penalty as raised up to the
date of the latest demand order. The
interest and penalty for the period from
the latest date of demand order to date
of Balance Sheet has neither been
calculated nor included in contingent
liability. Consequential impact over
total amount of contingent liability is
currently not ascertainable (Note No 38
refer para 4(a) to the Ind AS financial
statements.)

Further, it also includes legal cases
against the company pending before
various judicial forums (Supreme court,
High court, arbitrators etc.) against
which claims has been raised by
various third parties. In the absence of
details of amount of claims, as raised
by the third parties, made available by
the management, consequential impact
over the total amount of contingent
liability if those cases are decided not in

favor of the Company is currently not

As the department has already
adjusted Rs 68.03 Cr against the
disputed demand of Rs 191.39 Cr.
So there is no question of interest
on the amount already adjusted by
the department.

As regard to rest unadjusted
disputed demand, this is to submit
that in previous financial years, the
judgements were made in our
favour. So there is no need to
include the interest amount in
contingent liability. Furthermore,
the interest 1is contingent on
outcome of disputed cases and as
our legal consultant has stated in
their legal opinion that all of the
cases are expected to be settled in
favour of CMPDI therefore the
liability on account of interest has
remote possibility.

Further, as decided during meeting
with CAG in relation to audit for FY
2020-21, the interest up to the date
of appeal only has to be considered
in contingent liability. The same has
already been followed.

—
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ascertainable (Mote - Mo 38 refer para |

Ha| 0 the [nd AS inancial statements,

b) ‘It was observed that debiors
inchade old cutstanding balances of RBs.
8286 Cr.(P. Y. Rs, 67.11 Cr.} against
CIL subsidiaries, pending for realization

| CMPDIL HQ 1s regularly [oilowing up
| {or the meocovery of the dues at the

higheat level of Coal Inddia Ltd. ancd
| it Bubauliaries.

o mare tThan 1 year. Az per crcilar no |

CIL/DT/2021/3093 issued by CIL;
1} Pavment of 70% of baszic amount of
Bl value and 18% GST (ie., total T5%
of total Bl value) thereon to bee paad by
subswdinres (o CMPDI within 15 days
ol receipt of ball; 1) Bill reconoiliantion o
future shall be through s portal and
CMPDI shall iantimate the action an
portal and cormmunicate with
aubsuiiares; | Outsiandmng bills for
more than one wear shall be reviewed
Jointly by the CMPD and the concermed
subsidiary. However, during the course
of our audit 1 was obzserved that the
bills ressed o subsidiaties are not being
recovered as per the above-menbicned
carcular dsaued by Cll. Conseguential

impact i confirmation /
reconcibatony  admstment of  such
balances, 1 any, are not currently
ascertaitable:

| GM (Finance) has woilien lelters o
: G [P&FP| of ECL, BOCL, CCL, WICL,
{BECL, NCL, MCL
cand CIL on 1500, 2021,

{ 24082022 and 13.12:2022
| respectively  for 5% peyment 1n
{ advance against bills of CMPDIL.

| M [Finanoe), CMPIIL has
ip:*w-nmtl]:; visled ECL, BOCL, SECL
jand WCL  and requested  the
"concerned  authorities for payment
| of TH% advance on regutar hasis.

[CMD, CMPDIL has communicitierd

Dwwith CMIT of all sister concerns and

f Director  [Techmical|, CIL wvide E-
office dated 14.07.2022,/35.07.2022
| for payment of 75% advance of the
total bill Value.

| Further, the debtors balance are
:Tﬂ"l'\'l,:l111‘i|1‘:l|. tirree Toe Birne and balianoee
En'unﬁrrnallc:-n i obtained  [rom
jooncerned subsidiares,
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Management Comment to Annexure “A” referred to in Paragraph 1 of “Report on

Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of Independent Auditors Report for the

Year Ended 31st March,

2023.

Directions

Audit Reply

Management Reply

1) Whether the company has
system in place 1o process

all the accounting
transactions  through IT
systems?

If yes, the implication of
processing  of accounting
transactions  outside  IT
systems on integrity of the
accounts along with the
Jfinancial implications, if any
may be stated

There is a system in place to
process all the material
accounting transaction and
recording of all underlying
business  transactions  is
done in its SAP-ERP
Software. Accordingly,
there are no implications on
the integrity of the
accounts. The
information/Data is flowing
from various modules and
captured in the financials
through automation under
SAP for the processes like
Financial Accounting and
Controlling (FICO), Sales
and Distribution (S&D),

Material Management
(MM), Human Capital
Management (HCM),

Production Planning (PP),
Project System (PS) and
Plant Maintenance (PM).
As  per information and
explanations given fto us,
Post completion of
stabilization phase on 31°
March 2022, the system is
under AMC phase.

During the course of our
audit, it was observed that,
Sfollowing  activities  are
performed, outside SAP:

As explained to us, SAP
integration of Biometric
attendance is available but
due to integration issue
with NIC, presently the
attendance is either being
maintained manually or
through Biometric system
serving as source data
which is finally captured in
SAP.

In respect of the activities

performed outside SAP, as

No comments.

—
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above, in our opinion there
is no material financial
implications.

2)Whether there is any
restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver /
write-off of debts / loans /
interest etc. made by a
lender to the company due
to the company’s inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the
[financial impact may be
stated. Whether such cases
are properly accounted for?
(In case, lender is a
government company, then
this  direction is  also
applicable  for  statutory
auditor of lender company)

As per information and
explanations given fo us,
there is no case of any
restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver /
write-off of debts / loans /
inferest etc. made by a
lender to the company due
to the company’s inability
to repay the loan.

No Comments.

3)Whether funds
received/receivable Jor
specific schemes  firom
central/state agencies were
properly accounted
Sfor/utilized as per its terms
and conditions?

List the cases of deviation.

As per information and
explanations given fto us,
the company has not
received/no receivable any
Junds/grants except against
detailed &  promotional
drilling, R&D & S&T and
NMET as mentioned in
clause 2 & 3 of Part-II -
Additional directions
(Annexure — ‘A°).

No Comments.

Part-I1 Additional
Directions of C&AG

1)YWhether any independent
assessment and certification
of migration process of data
from Coalnet portal to SAP
had been done

As per information and
explanations given to us,
independent assessment
and certification of
migration process of data
from Coalnet portal to SAP
had not been done. As
informed to us, the matter is
taken up at CIL level

No Comments.

2) Whether exploration of
blocks was completed in
compliance of MOU and
grant received for detailed
and promotional drilling

As per information and
explanations given fo us,
there is no MOU between
CMPDI and
MOC/CIL/NMET. CMPDI
is the nodal agency for all

No Comments.

5
ar 1o
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utilized and accounted
properly. List the Cases of
deviation.

3) Whether fund received
for R&D and S&T were
properly
for/utilized as per terms and
condition? List the cases of

accounted

deviations.

information related  to
exploration of coal and
lignite in the country.
CMPDI  undertake  the
activities of detailed and
promotional drilling as per
the project/blocks
sanctioned/approved by
MOC/CIL/NMET either by
itself or through MECL and
private  parties  through
MOU and tenders.

On the basis of our
examination of the samples
on ftest check basis, it was
observed that exploration of
blocks was completed in
compliance of MOU and
grant received for detailed
and promotional drilling
are being utilized and
accounted for properly.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us,
R&D and S&T projects are
approved/sanctioned by the
Technical committee of
MOC/]CIL  with certain
terms and condition based
on the proposal submitted
by the implementing
agency/institute to CMPDI.
CMPDI makes an estimate
of fund requirement for all
the ongoing or new
R&D/S&T projects and
make a consolidated
requisition from MOC/CIL.
Once the fund is received,
CMPDI disburse the fund
to implementing
agency/institute in various
installments based on the
progress of the projects.
Once the project is complete
and Project completion
report is approved by the
technical cominittee,
implementing

agency/institute submit the
utilization  certificate  to

No Comments.

—
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CMPDI and refund the
unspent amount of the fund
received on such projects to
CMPDI along with the
interest earned on those
funds.

On the basis of our
examination of the samples
on test check basis, it was
observed that the fund
received for R&D and S&T
were properly accounted
Sfor/utilized as per terms and
condition.

Management Comment to Annexure “B” referred to in Paragraph 2 of “Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of Independent Auditors Report for the
Year Ended 31st March, 2023.

Point No (i) (c) of Annexure “B” Management Reply

According to the information and | No Comments.
explanation given to us, the title
deeds of all immovable properties
(other than properties where the
company is lessee and lease
agreements are duly executed in
favor of lease) disclosed in the
financial statements are held in the
name of the company.

However, during the course of
our audit, title deed of land
holdings in respect of CMPDI RI1
(Asansol), could not be produced
before us for our verification.
Further, leasehold Iland at
Kudumkela valued at Rs. 0.46 cr.
shown under other land (Note No.
3) pending to be renewed from
1.2.2023. Although, the same
has been approved in COFD
meeting dated 20.03.2023 for
renewal.

Management Comment to Annexure “C” referred to in Paragraph 3(h) of “Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of Independent Auditors Report for the
Year Ended 31st March, 2023.

Palaer)

1
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Management Comment to Annexure “C” referred to in Paragraph 3(h) of “Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of Independent Auditors Report for the

Year Ended 31st March, 2023.

Opinion of Auditor

Management Reply

In our opinion, to the best of our
information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2023,
based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria  established by the
Company  considering the  essential
components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial  Controls = Over  Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

However, further improvement is required
in i) the documentation of Internal
Financial Controls of the Company in
respect of its risk assessment process, risk
analysis of different functional areas and
incorporating the process flows at
departmental  levels  including  risk
mitigation in respect of insurance coverage,
ii) strengthening of the monitoring of
controls in respect of misc. expenses, iii)
confirmation/ reconciliation/adjustment of
other financial assets, other current & non-
current  assets, trade payvables &
receivables, other financial liabilities and
other current and non-current liabilities. iv)
Control over capturing & recording of
attendance of employees.

The Internal Financial control

system  presently available in
relation to risk assessment is also
robust and adequate.

Our internal auditor

regularly
makes a report on risk assessment
covering all the aspects. The same is
deliberated regularly before COFDs
and audit committee at frequent

interval.
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Addendum -V

COMPANY SECRETARIES

INFINITY BENCMARK, 18TH FLOOR, ROOM NO. 105, STREET NO 25. GP BLOCK, SECTOR-5
BIDHANNAGAR, KOLKATA - 700091.
Mob.: +91 9867771580 e E-mail: raveena@mehta-mehta.com e Visit us : www.mehta-mehta.com

FORM MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2023
{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

To,

The Members,

CENTRAL MINE PLANNING & DESIGN INSTITUTE LIMITED
Gondwana Place, Kanke Road

Ranchi, Jharkhand- 834008

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(hereinafter called "the Company"). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided us

a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct / statutory compliance and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and also that
the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, according to the
provisions of’

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)y The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made there under
(during the period under review not applicable to the company);

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under (dm;mg
the period under review not applicable to the company);

HEAD. OFFICE : 201-206, Shiv Smriti. 2nd Floor, 49/A, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Above Corporation Bank, Worli, Mumbai-400 018
Tel.: +91-22-6611 9696 *E-mail: info@mehta-mehta.com. #Visit us * www.mehata-mehta com

SRS
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Diréct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (during the period under review not applicable to the
company);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act'):-

(a)

(®)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (during the period under review not applicable to
the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (during the period under review not applicable
to the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible

Securities) Regulations, 2021 (during the period under review not applicable to
the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (during the period under review not applicable
to the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client (during the period under review not applicable to the Company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021 (during the period under review not applicable to the
Company);

o

P

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018 (during the period under review not applica!l’e‘ to t ompany);

HEAD. OFFICE : 201-206, Shiv Smriti, 2nd Floor, 49/A, Dr. Anmie Besant Road. Abuvétdrporalion Bank, Worli. Mumbai-400 018
Tel.: +91-22-6611 9696 eE-mail: info@mehta-mehta com  eVisit us * www mahata-mehta com
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We have examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
(i)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (during the period under review not applicable to the Company);
(iii)  Other laws specifically applicable to the Company namely :

a) The Coal Mines Act, 1952

b) Indian Explosives Act, 1884

¢) Colliery Control Order, 2000 and Colliery Control Rules, 2004

d) The Coal Mines Regulations, 2017

¢) The Payment of Wages (Mines) Rules, 1956

f) Coal Mines Pension Scheme, 1998

g) Coal Mines Conservation and Development Act, 1974

h) The Mines Vocational Training Rules, 1966

i) The Mines Creche Rules, 1961

i) The Mines Rescue Rules, 1985

k) Coal Mines Pithead Bath Rules, 1946

1) Maternity Benefit (Mines and Circus) Rules, 1963

m) The Explosives Rules, 2008

n) Mineral Concession Rules, 1960

0) Coal Mines Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1948

p) Mines and Minerals (Development and Regulation) Act, 1957

q) The Payment of Undisbursed Wages (Mines) Rules, 1989

r) Indian Electricity Act, 2003 and the Indian Electricity Rules, 1956

s) Environment Protection Act, 1986 and Environment Protection Rules, 1986

t) The Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Ruies,
2016

u) The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution)Act, 1974 and Rules made thereunder

v) The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

w) Public Liability Insurance Act,1991 and Rules made thereunder.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines etc.

We further report that:

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above excepf to the extent as mentioned below: .

HEAD. OFFICE : 201-208, Shiv Smriti. 2nd Floor, 49/A, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Above Corporation Bank, Woarli. Mumbar48
Tel: +81-22-6611 9696 eE-mail: infa@mehta-mehta.com. Visit us - www mehata-mehta com LY
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1. Composition of the Board of Directors of the Compan

The requisite number of Independent Directors were not on the Board of the Company as
contemplated in Section 149(4) of the Act and the Clause 3.1.2 of DPE Guidelines on
Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) issued by the Department
of Public Enterprises (DPE) during the period under review. Further, as per the provisions of
Section 149 of the Act, the Company did not have a Woman Independent Director on its Board
from 10th July, 2022 to 31st March, 2023 for which requisite letters were sent for appointment
of both Independent Directors including Women Director by the management from time to
time to Ministry of Coal and copy to its Holding Company.

2. Composition of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company

As per the provisions of the Section 177 of the Act and Clause 4.1.1 of the DPE Guidelines for
Corporate Governance on CPSE, during the period under review, the Audit Committee was
constituted without Independent Directors for a period from 16" October, 2022 to 31" March,
2023 for which requisite letters has been submitted by the management from time to time.

3. Inview of exemption provided to Government Companies, vide notification dated June
5, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, from complying with the provision of
section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act 2013, the Company is not required to comply
which requires performance evaluation of Independent Directors by the entire Board
of Directors and review of performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board of
Directors as a whole and the Chairperson of the Company by the Independent
Directors.

We further report that all the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the
Audit Period, except the aforesaid, were made in due compliance of the various provisions of the
Act and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSE.

Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board / Committee Mectings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before ;he
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. - :
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate

with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the year 2022-23.

1) The Company at its Annual General Meeting held on July 21, 2022 declared final dividend of

16.842% i.e. Rs. 168.42 per equity share of face value of Rs. 1000/- each i.e. Rs. 24.05 crores
for the Financial Year 2021-2022.

2) The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on March 17, 2023 declared interim
dividend at 49.02% i.c. Rs. 490.20 per equity share of face value of Rs. 1000/- each
aggregating to Rs. 70 crores for F.Y. 2022-23

For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

@f e ) Jf‘i.’/
Nayan'lléndgﬁ '
Partner
FCS No: 11993
CP No.: 18686
UDIN: F011993E000662335

Place: Delhi
Date: 22.06.2023

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as '"ANNEXURE
A' and forms an integral part of this report.




* Annual Report & Accounts 2022-23

w7 /| 211 A& &) PE7V 21 1] (1 oo

LOMPANY SECRETARIES
IAFIRITY BENCALKRS, ETH FLODE,. S00M N 165, {1 F
CARL BCLEATA

B A

iy +RY BRETITYSED & E<ninl

Anmexore &

T,

The Members,

CERNTRAL MINE PLANNING & DESIGN INSTITUTE LIMITED
Ciomuhwann Place, Eoanke Eoad

Ranchi, Tharkhand- 854008

Chur repore of even date is 10 be read alone with this letter.

I} Mantenance of seeretariul record & the respomsibility of the management of the Company,
e respansibilily is 1o express an apinlon o thess secrétarial records based on our sl

2} We have folloswed the mdit prectices pnd processes a5 were appropriabe e obinin rensonmble
sesnirance ahout the comecimesy of the confenis of the secretarial records. The verification
was dong on test hests S0 ensuce that cormest laels sre reflected i secretaral recosds.. We
believe thal the processes and practices we followed provide a reascaable basis for oor
il

Jp We have ool venfied the eorrectness s appropsilateness of flnancial records and Books of
Accounts of the Comgany-

£} Wherever required, we have obtzined the Management representation abour the compliance
of Bvws, rabes and regulations and happening of cvents etg,

33 The compliace of the provisians oF comporaie lews, miles, regidofions, saandardy is the
responsihility of management. Our examination was limvéled to the verification of procedures
on test hasis.

&) As megard the books, popers, forms; reports and rewms fiked by the Company under the
provistens referred 1o in our Secrctartal Awfii Report in Form ME-3 the adherence and
compliance o the reguiremenss of e said regulations & the responsibility of management
O examinsion weas fimited to checking the execmion and fmeliness of the Mling of
varkize furms, repos, retams el docomends that nesd o be filed by the Company with
variaes autharities under the sid regulations, We have not verified the cormectness and
coweripe of the contents of such forms, repos, returns and documents.
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7) The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code P1996M11007500)

§ \ e,
\.‘I::;_'__r._ .
/ %\é{jftj ¢

Nayan Handa

Partner

FCS No: 11993

CP No.: 18686

UDIN: FO11993E000662335

Place: Delhi
Date: 22.06.2023
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Addendum - VI

Contracts or Arrangements with related parties U/s 188 (1).
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

S.No. Particulars Details

1. Details of contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis NIL

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

Date(s) of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any:

Q|| (a0 |T|®

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis As per
Annexure -A

Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

Date(s) of approval by the Board if any:

—~ |0 || |T|®

Amount paid as advances, if any
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Annexure -A

Related Party Transactions within Group as on 31.03.2023.

The Company being a Government related entity is exempt from the general disclosure
requirements in relation to related party transactions and outstanding balances with the
controlling Governments and another entity under same Government.

As per Ind AS 24, following are the disclosures regarding nature and amount of significant
transactions under same management.

(X in Crore)
Amount of transactions Nature of
Name of the Company . .
during the year Transactions
Eastern Coalfields Limited 94.62 Sales
Bharat Coking Coal Limited 53.02 Sales
Central Coalfields Lmited 192.87 Sales
Western Coalfields Limited 175.13 Sales
South Eastern Coalfields Limited 380.01 Sales
Northern Coalfields Limited 126.57 Sales
Mahanadi Coalfields Limited 110.80 Sales
Coal India Limited (CIL) (100% Holding Company) 13.07 Sales
Grand Total 1146.09
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Addendum - VII

ANNEXURE FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31.03.2023-INFORMATION AS PER RULES 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH COMPANIES (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) , Rules 2014.
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(a) | Employed throughout the financial year under review and were in receipt of remuneration for
that financial year in the aggregate of not less than Rs.1, 02, 00,000/-.

(b)
Employed for the part of the financial year under review and were in receipt of remuneration
for any part of that financial year at a rate which in the aggregate was not less than Rs.
8,50,000/- per month.

Nil

(c) | Employed throughout the year or part and was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that
drawn by MD/WTD/Manager and holds not less than two percent of equity shares of the
company.
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ADDENDUM - Vil

Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
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The € hairman-cum-Alanaging irector

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
Hiancha

Subect: Lonmments ool thie © r-l.llr-ln'-l!u' damed Avwddvtor Ceenveral of Inder umcker Section 14306 u k)
af the § CTEPanIes Act. 2003 on the Fanancial Statcoents of 4 eniral Mise F'|.|.|II'|||':_'| & [ hesien
Insituiie Lovoted for the vean ended 31 Masch 2023,

| Torwand herewsth the Commeents o the € ampirelicr amd Aadior Creneral of India
uniler Sechon 4GB of the Companecs Act, 20003 on thie fmancia] statoments of Ceniltrad

Wime Flunming & Design Institate Limited tor the venr ended 30 Sarch 20003

The recenpt of this letter may please be scknowladgal.
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(Al Prakash)

Privcipal Dawvector of Aol {§Coal i
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T Fema e, 2340 ar=t wdrer I 10 TR, ¥ - 700 020,234/, AL 4. O
BOSE ROAD KOLHKATA-TOO020
B HD Phone: 91-33-228753800 033-22815T7T84, 033-2287 7165, 033-22900314
EAe E-mail: dgacoalkolii@cag.gov,.in % FAN: 300-22800062,
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COMMESTs OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUIMTOR GENERAL OF INIA
USDER SECTHMS 14360 (B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 283 O THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CENTRAL MINE PLANNING & DESIGN INSTITUTE FOR THE
YEAR EXIED 3 MARCH 2023,

e preparatisn of finamcal atemenls of Central Mine Planming & Design Institute
Limnited for the veor ended 30 March 2023 m accondance with the lancial reporting frimework
preserbed umder the Compamics Aet, 2003 (Act) 15 the responsihelity of the management ol the
commpany The statutory suditor appoisded by the Compteoller amd Audsor Creneral of Idia ander
section 139050 of the Act s responsble for eaprossmz: o o the finandceal stanccnits wisder
section 143 of the Act based on mdependent audit m accordance with the standands oo auditing
prescibed ander sectaom 143 1800 of the Act Thas = statead e have been done by them vide thea
Suchit Repont dited 02 Muaew 2023

I om behall of the {ompieoiler and Auwditor Genernl of Dwdi, have combscted o
..:ppl.;m.'nl!;l.r:. audit ol the financrl statements of L enirel Some J’I'.m'.:.-nt' .5 ”l."\.-l}'_ﬁ Imstrute
Lirmited for the vear cnded 31 March 2023 under sceteon 143 6Ka)l of thd Ack Thes
supplementzry audit haz been carmied out independently withoul acoess to the working papers ol
thas sttutory msditors wnad s limoted primanty o anguirees of the stamtory soditors amild company

personne] and @ scloctve examination of some of the accounting recoords

O the basis of miy supplementane audit nothing siomficant has come to vy know ledpe
which would grve nse o any comment dpon or supplement 0 stalutory audebors” repor wndes

wechion 13 GMb) of the A

Far and on behal o the
L pmpiarelber and Aasdotor Cronerl ol Tadimn

.-"-Z-.-"'. ey
.-l_.-" " r;"- f’# f
i At Prakash)
Place; Kolkaia Prmeipal Dircctor of Auda (0 oul)
Dt 8 Munae 2022 koslkats




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)
Addendum - IX

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) FOR FINANCIAL YEAR
2022-23

1. Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company.

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited (CMPDIL) is undertaking different developmental
activities under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) following the latest DPE guidelines and

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The allocation of funds is done as per the CSR policy of

CMPDIL under which the higher of the two amounts — 2% of the average net profit for the three

immediately preceding financial years is allocated for a particular financial year. The CSR policy of

CMPDIL is present for public view on its website www.cmpdi.co.in.

2. Composition of CSR committee:

Composition of CSR Committee from 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023
Sl. Name of Designation and Me:tlij:;:et:fonSR Me:::xn;:e;: (f:SR
No. Director nature of Directorship Committee held | Committee attended
during the year during the year

Attended the meetings as a Chairman of CSR Committee

1 Shri Pramod Singh Chauhan| Chairman (ceased the office on 15.10.2022) 3 3

2 Shri R. N. Jha Chairman (w.e.f 23.12.2022) 2 2
Attended the meetings as a Member of CSR Committee

3 Smt.Alka Panda Member (Ceased the office on 09.07.2022) 1 1

4 Dr. Krishna Chandra Pandey| Member (Ceased the office on 09.07.2022) 1 1

5 ShriR. N. Jha Member (Attended the CSR Committee 3 3

meetings as a member till 22.12.2022)

6 Shri S. K. Gomasta Member (Member till 06.10.2022) 2 2

7 Shri Shankar Nagachari Member (Member from 06.10.2022) 3 3

8 Shri Ajay Kumar Member (Member from 23.12.2022) 2 2

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The details of Composition of CSR committee, CSR policy and CSR projects approved by the
Board are disclosed on the website Composition of CSR committee, CSR policy and CSR
projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website at https://www.cmpdi.co.in/csr.php

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub- rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report).
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In pursuance of sub- rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility policy) Rules,
2014, no CSR project undertaken by CMPDIL fall under the purview of Impact Assessment.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the

Companies (Corporate Social responsibility policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for
set off for the financial year, if any

Sl. | Financial | Amountavailableforset-offfrom Amountrequiredtobeset-offfor
No. Year precedingfinancialyears(inRs.) thefinancialyear,ifany(inRs.)
1 | 2022-23 |25,27,000.00 NIL
TOTAL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):

Head Amount (Rs. In Crores)
PBT for FY 2021-22 367.24
PBT for FY 2020-21 414.49
PBT for FY 2019-20 312.62
Total of the preceding three years 1094.35
Average of the preceding three years 364.7833

8.

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
Two percent of the Average Net Profit of the preceding three years was Rs. 7.30 crores.

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial year.

No surplus has arisen out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial year.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any
No amount is to be set off for the financial year.
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).

The mandatory amount to be spent under CSR by CMPDIL for the financial year 2022-23
was Rs. 7.30 crores.

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Financial Year. | Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section

(inRs) section 135(6). 135(5).
Amount Date of transfer. Name of the Amount. Date of transfer.
Fund
89203204.85 Nil NA NA Nil NA
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

No Such asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year 2022-23.
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

Not Applicable.
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

Not Applicable.

Details of the entry or public authority or beneficiary under whose Name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.

Not Applicable.

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5).

CMPDIL has spent Rs.892.03 lakhs in the financial year 2022-23 which is more thanthe statutory
requirement of two percent of the average net profit (i.e. Rs. 730.00 Lakhs).

This is to certify that the implementation and monitoring of CSR activities is in compliance of CSR
activities and Policy of CMPDIL.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(Manoj Kumar) (R.N. Jha) (R.K. Mahapatro)
Chairman-cum-Managing Chairman CSR Nodal Officer (CSR)
Director Committee
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
BALANCE SHEET as at 31.03.2023

(X in Crore)
Note No.
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets :
(a) Property, Plant & Equipments 3 229.46 194.45
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4 15.09 36.66
(c) Exploration and Evaluation Assets 5 - -
(d) Intangible Assets 6.1 14.34 10.40
(e) Intangible Assets under Development 6.2 - 2.30
(f) Financial Assets :
(i) Investments 7 - -
(ii) Loans 8 0.06 0.08
(iii) Other Financial Assets 9 3.98 5.45
(9) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 57.89 66.97
(h) Other non-current assets 10 0.07 2.95
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 320.89 319.26
Current Assets :
(a) Inventories 12 16.01 13.07
(b) Financial Assets :
(i) Investments 7 - -
(i) Trade Receivables 13 822.40 815.90
(iii) Cash & Cash equivalents 14 379.97 160.97
(iv) Other Bank Balances 15 90.14 40.14
(v) Loans 8 - -
(vi) Other Financial Assets 9 91.51 110.41
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 93.17 58.54
(d) Other Current Assets 11 105.44 174.53
Total Current Assets (B) 1,598.64 1,373.56
Total Assets (A+B) 1,919.53 1,692.82
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity :
(a) Equity Share Capital 16 142.80 142.80
(b) Other Equity 17 1094.98 871.72
Equity attributable to equity holders of the company 1237.78 1014.52

Non-Controlling Interests - -

Total Equity (A) 1237.78 1014.52
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BALANCE SHEET as at 31.03.2023

(% in Crore)
Note No.
As at 31.03.23 As at 31.03.22
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities :
(a) Financial Liabilities :
(i) Borrowings 18 - -
(i) Lease Liabilities 0.86 1.02
(iii) Trade Payables (if any) - -
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 20 71.67 78.30
(b) Provisions 21 10.01 88.76
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 22 - -
Total Non-Current Liabilities (B) 82.54 168.08
Current Liabilities :
(a) Financial Liabilities :
(i) Borrowings 18 - -
(i) Lease Liabilities 0.84 0.29
(iii) Trade payables : 19
Total outstanding dues of micro and small } )
enterprises
Total outs_tandlng dues of Credl_tors 145.33 150.94
other than micro and small enterprises
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 20 88.09 73.12
(b) Other Current Liabilities 23 130.23 140.99
(c) Provisions 21 234.72 144.88
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (net)
Total Current Liabilities (C) 599.21 510.22
Total Equity and Liabilities (A+B+C) 1919.53 1692.82
The Accompanying Notes & Note 1, 2 & 38 form an integral part of Financial Statements.
- |
roL _.-'j‘t Yoo,
/ Daloet) [ g{ it g
(A. Mundhra) (P. K. Prasad) (S. K. Gomasta) (Manoj Kumar)
Company Secretary General Manager (F) Director Chairman-Cum-
DIN-08714820 Managing Director

DIN-09225497
In terms of our report of even date attached

For K.C Tak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 000216C

oo
( CA Anil Jain)

Date : 02 May 2023 Partner
. i Membership No. : 079005
Place: Ranchi

UDIN : 23079005BGYQBK2530




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS For the Year Ended 31t March, 2023

(% in Crore)
Note For the Year ended For the Year ended
No. 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Revenue from Operations
A Sales (Net) 24 1386.09 1208.43
B  Other Operating Revenue (Net) - -
() Revenue from Operations (A+B) 1386.09 1208.43
(I)  Other Income 25 12.69 29.83
(llf) Total Income (I+11) 1398.78 1238.26
(IV) EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 26 33.09 33.62
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods/work 27
in progress and Stock in trade - -
Excise Duty
Employee Benefits Expense 28 698.33 570.82
Power & Fuel 3.70 2.58
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 29 7.30 6.86
Repairs 30 31.33 21.26
Contractual Expense 31 142.75 145.87
Finance Costs 32 0.09 0.07
Depreciation/Amortization/ Impairment expense 28.61 22.99
Provisions 33 0.04 -
Write off 34 - -
Other Expenses 35 86.59 68.15
Total Expenses (IV) 1031.83 872.22
(V) Profit before exceptional items and Tax (llI-IV) 366.95 366.04
(VI) Exceptional ltems - -
(VIl) Profit before Tax (V-VI) 366.95 366.04
(VIIl) Tax expense 36 70.29 83.92
(IX)  Profit for the period from continuin
operations (V'I)I-VIII) ’ 296.66 282.12
(X) Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations -
(XI) Tax exp of discontinued operations ) -
(XII)  Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations (after -
Tax) (X-XI) - -
(XN1) Share in JV's/Associate's profit/(loss) - -
(XIV) Profit for the Period (IX+XII+XIIl) 296.66 282.12
Other Comprehensive Income 37
A (i)ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 25,95 26.65
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 6.53 6.71

reclassified to profit or loss
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B

(XV)

(XVI)

(XVII)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS For the Year Ended 31t March, 2023

(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Income tax relating to items that will be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the period
(XIV+XV) (Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other
Comprehensive Income for the period)

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the company

Non-controlling interest

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owners of the company

Non-controlling interest

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owners of the company

Non-controlling interest

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

Note
No.

(% in Crore)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

19.42 19.94
316.08 302.06
296.66 282.12
296.66 282.12
19.42 19.94
19.42 19.94
316.08 302.06
316.08 302.06
2,077.45 1,975.63
2,077.45 1,975.63




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS For the Year Ended 31t March, 2023

(% in Crore)
Note For the Year ended For the Year ended
No. 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(XVIII) Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation):
(1) Basic - -
(2) Diluted - -
(XIX) Earnings per equity share (for discontinued
& continuing operation):
(1) Basic 2,077.45 1,975.63
(2) Diluted 2,077.45 1,975.63

The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of Financial Statements.

|

LY

omasta) (Manoj Kumar)

(A. Mundhra) (P. K. Prasad) (S. K
Company Secretary General Manager (F) Director Chairman-Cum-
DIN-08714820 Managing Director

DIN-09225497

In terms of our report of even date attached

For K.C Tak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 000216C

o
( CA Anil Jain)

Date : 02" May 2023 Partner
. i Membership No. : 079005
Place: Ranchi

UDIN : 23079005BGYQBK2530
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (INDIRECT METHOD) For the Year Ended 31t March, 2023

(% in Crore)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before tax 366.95 366.04
Adjustment for:
Depreciation & Impairment of Fixed Assets 28.61 22.99
Interest from Bank Deposits (7.47) (4.13)
Finance cost 0.09 0.07
Interest / Dividend from investments - -
Profit / Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (0.02) -
Other non-operating Income (4.43) (24.57)
Liability write back during the period (0.77) (1.13)
Advance Stripping Activity Adjustment - -
Aesets and Liabiliios Adjustments for 382.96 350.27
Trade Receivable (6.50) 76.43
Inventories (2.94) (2.25)
Short/Long term Loans/Advances & Other Current Assets 19.69 49.36
Short/Long term Liabilities and Provisions 29.40 (200.35)
Cash generated from operations 422.61 282.46
Income Tax paid / refund (76.82) (90.63)
Interest paid (0.09) (0.07)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 345.70 191.76
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets (46.57) (41.65)
Proceeds from sale of Assets 0.02 -
Other Long Term Loans & Advances (Capital Advances) - -
Interest received on Fixed Deposit / Loan to Subsidiary 7.47 413
Other non-operating Income 5.20 25.70

Investment in Bank Deposit - -
Change in investments - -
Investment in joint venture - -
Interest pertaining to Investing Activities - -

Interest / Dividend from investments - -
Net cash flow from Investing Activities (B) (33.88) (11.82)




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceed from short term Borrowings/Govt. Grant 1.23 1.12
Repayment of Borrowings - -
Interest & Finance cost pertaining to Financing Activities - -
Receipt of Shifting & Rehabilitation Fund - -

Dividend & Dividend Tax (94.05) (90.91)
Buyback of Equity Share Capital - -
Net cash used in Financing Activities (C) (92.82) (89.79)
Net increase/ decrease in Cash & Bank Balances

(A+B+C) 219.00 90.15
Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of

the year (Refer Note 14 for components of cash & 160.97 70.82

cash equivalents)

Cash & cash equivalents as at the end of the year
(Refer Note 14 for component of cash & cash 379.97 160.97
equivalents)

(All figures in bracket represent outflow)

|
oI ¢

(A. Mundhra) (P. K. Prasad) (S. K. omasta) (Manoj Kumar)
Company Secretary General Manager (F) Director Chairman-Cum-
DIN-08714820 Managing Director
DIN-09225497

In terms of our report of even date attached

For K.C Tak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 000216C

amw
( CA Anil Jain)

Date : 02 May 2023 Partner
. ; Membership No. : 079005
Place: Ranchi

UDIN : 23079005BGYQBK2530
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 4 : CAPITAL WIP

(% in Crore)
Building Plant and | Railway | Other Mining | Others Total
(including |Equipments | Sidings | infrastructure/ | (to be
water supply, Development | specified

roads and in note)

culverts)
Gross Carrying Amount:
As at 1 April 2021 20.01 17.13 - - - 37.14
Additions 4.90 0.06 - - - 4.96
Capitalisation/ Deletions (0.48) (4.96) - - - (5.44)
As at 31st March 2022 2443 12.23 - - - 36.66
As at 1 April 2022 24.43 12.23 - - - 36.66
Additions 1.66 0.76 - - - 242
Capitalisation/ Deletions (24.11) 0.12 - - - (23.99)
As at 31 st March 2023 1.98 13.11 - - - 15.09
Accumulated Depreciation
and Impairment
As at 1 April 2021 - - - - - -
Charge for the year = = - - - =
Impairment - - - - - -
Deletions/Adjustments = = - - - =
As at 31st March 2022 - - - - - -
As at 1 April 2022 = = - - - -
Charge for the year - - - - - -
Impairment = = - - - -
Deletions/Adjustments - - - - -
As at 31 st March 2023 S o 5 5 5 =
Net Carrying Amount - - - - - -
As at 31 st March 2023 1.98 13.11 - - - 15.09
As at 31st March 2022 24.43 12.23 - - - 36.66
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 4 : CAPITAL WIP (contd.)

Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) as on 31.03.2023
(a) Ageing schedule for Capital-work-in Progress:

(% in Crore)

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1-2 2-3 years More
1 years years than 3
years
Projects in progress:
BUILDING
Construction of Badminton court at CMPDI - 0.74 - -
Construction of Civil and Allied work 0.35 - - -
Construction of Storage room for keeping radiation 0.03 - - -
DRAIN COVERAGE 0.18 - - -
SHOPPING COMPLEX 0.22 - - -
2 SOURCE ROOMS 0.07 - - -
Construction of new boundary wall at CMPDI Colony RI-7 0.14 - - -
New water supply pipeline to CMPDI colony RI7 0.11 - - -
PLANT & EQUIPMENT
WIP for Automatic Drum Composter 0.16 - - -
EFFLUENT TREATMENT PLAN (ETP) 0.07 - - -
SOLAR PLANT 0.49 - - -
Rewiring Of B1 B2 C D Block Quarters Cmpdi Colony 0.22 - - -
Projects temporarily suspended:
BUILDING
Lakhanpur Residential building for Gopalpur camp of RI-7 - 0.10 0.02 0.02
PLANT & EQUIPMENT
CIL R&D WIP - - - 12.17
GRAND TOTAL 2.04 0.84 0.02 12.19




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 4 : CAPITAL WIP (contd.)

(b) Overdue capital-work-in progress

To be completed in
Less than 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3
years
Projects in progress:
Building (including water supply, roads and
culverts)
Plant and Equipments
Railway Sidings
Total
Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) as on 31.03.2022
(a) Ageing schedule for Capital-work-in Progress: (% in Crore)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1-2 2-3 years More
1 years years than 3
years
Projects in progress:
BUILDING
Construction of Badminton court at CMPDI 0.40 - - -
Construction of Civil and Allied work 0.23 - - -
Office Building RI-4 0.07 - - 23.21
CMPDI RI-7 Office building 0.15 0.22 - -
BuildingLakhanpur Residential building for Gopalpur camp of RI-7 0.10 0.03 - 0.02
PLANT & EQUPMENTS
Capsule Lift by Deepak Kumar singh 0.03 - - -
DECORATIVE LIGHTING 0.03 - - -
Projects temporarily suspended: - - - -
Plant and Equipments - - - -
CIL R&D WIP - - - 1217
GRAND TOTAL 1.01 0.25 - 35.40
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(b) Overdue capital-work-in progress

To be completed in

Less than 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3
years

Projects in progress:

Building (including water supply, roads and
culverts)

Plant and Equipments

Railway Sidings
Total




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 5 : EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(X in Crore)

Exploration and Evaluation Costs

Gross Carrying Amount:
As at 15t April 2021 -
Additions -
Deletions/Adjustments -
As at 31 March 2022 -
As at 18t April 2022 -
Additions -
Deletions/Adjustments -
As at 31%* March 2023 -
Accumulated Provision and Impairment
As at 15t April 2021 -
Charge for the year -

Impairment -
Deletions/Adjustments -
As at 31%t March 2022 -
As at 15t April 2022 -

Charge for the year -
Impairment -
Deletions/Adjustments -
As at 31%t March 2023 -
Net Carrying Amount
As at 31%* March 2023 -
As at 31 March 2022 -
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 6.1 : INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(X in Crore)

CSZTt\‘I)v‘:rZr (specoift;(1 ?I:sn ote) fet
Gross Carrying Amount:
As at 1 April 2021 17.55 - 17.55
Additions 8.02 - 8.02
Deletions/Adjustments 0.14 - 0.14
As at 31st March 2022 25.71 - 25.71
As at 1 April 2022 2571 - 2571
Additions 9.60 - 9.60
Deletions/Adjustments - - -
As at 31 st March 2023 35.31 - 35.31
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment
As at 1 April 2021 12.18 - 12.18
Charge for the year 313 - 313
Impairment - - -
Deletions/Adjustments - - -
As at 31st March 2022 15.31 = 15.31
As at 1 April 2022 15.31 - 15.31
Charge for the year 5.66 - 5.66
Impairment - - -
Deletions/Adjustments - - -
As at 31 st March 2023 20.97 - 20.97
Net Carrying Amont
As at 31 st March 2023 14.34 - 14.34
As at 31st March 2022 10.40 - 10.40




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE - 6.2: INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(% in Crore)

ERP under
Development

Gross Carrying Amount:
As at 1 April 2021
Additions
Capitalisation/Deletions

As at 31st March 2022

As at 1 April 2022
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31 st March 2023

Accumulated Impairment
As at 1 April 2021
Charge for the year
Impairment
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31st March 2022

As at 1 April 2022
Charge for the year
Impairment
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31 st March 2023

Net Carrying Amont
As at 31 st March 2023
As at 31st March 2022

Intangible Assets under Development 31.03.2022
(a) Ageing schedule for intangible assets under development

Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of

Less than

More than

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
Projects in Progress :
ERP under development 2.30 - - - 2.30
Projects temporarily suspended :
Total 2.30 - - - 2.30
(b) Overdue Intangible Assets under development
To be completed in
L¢1ass then 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
years 3 years

Total
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 7 : INVESTMENTS

(¥ in Crore)

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

Non Current

Investment in Shares - -
Equity Shares in Joint Venture Companies - -
Other Investments . -
In Secured Bonds - -
In Co-operative Shares -

Total - -

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments: - -
Aggregate amount of quoted investments: - -
Market value of quoted investments: - -

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments: - -

NOTE - 7 (contd.)

INVESTMENTS
(% in Crore)

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

Current

Mutual Fund Investment

UTI Mutual Fund - -
UTI Liquid Cash Plan - -
LIC Mutual Fund - -
SBI Mutual Fund - -
Canara Robeco Mutual Fund - -
Union KBC Mutual Fund - -
BOI AXA Mutual Fund - -
Total - | | -
Aggregate of Quoted Investment: - -

Aggregate of unquoted investments: - -

Market value of Quoted Investment: - -

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments: - -




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Non Current :
Other Loans

- Secured, considered good
- Unsecured, considered good
- Have significant increase in credit risk

- Credit impaired

Less: Allowance for doubtful loans

Total

Current
Other Loans
- Secured, considered good
- Unsecured, Considered good
- Have significant increase in credit risk
- Credit impaired
- Doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful loans

Total

NOTE - 8 : LOANS

As at 31.03.2023

(% in Crore)

As at 31.03.2022

0.06 0.08
0.06 0.08
0.06 0.08
0.06 0.08




* Annual Report & Accounts 2022-23

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 9 : OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Non Current
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity - -
Deposits with bank under :
- Mine Closure Plan - -
- Shifting & Rehabilitation Fund scheme - -
Security Deposit 4.02 5.49
Less : Allowance for doubtful Security deposits 0.04 0.04
Other Deposit and Receivables - -
Less : Allowance for doubtful deposits - -
3.98 5.45
TOTAL 3.98 5.45
Current
Current Account Balance with CIL 57.85 53.63
Balance with IICM -
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances i -
Interest accrued 4.92 0.94
Claims & other receivables* 28.74 55.84
Less : Allowance for doubtful claims - -
28.74 55.84
TOTAL 91.51 110.41
Claims & other receivables* 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Receivable From Ind AS 115 26.29 49.80
Claims Receivable & Others 2.45 6.04
TOTAL 28.74 55.84




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 10 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
(i) Capital Advances 0.07 2.95
Less : Allowance for doubtful advances - -
0.07 295

(ii) Advances other than capital advances
(a) Others Deposits and Advance - -

Less : Allowance for doubtful advances - -

(b) Advances to related parties - -

Total 0.07 2.95




* Annual Report & Accounts 2022-23

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE -11 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(% in Crore)

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

(a) Advance payment of statutory dues 0.04 0.04
Less : Allowance for doubtful Statutory dues - -
0.04 0.04
(b) Advance to Related Parties B -
(c) Other Advances and Deposits * 84.52 146.41
Less : Allowance for doubtful other deposits and advances 0.25 0.25
84.27 146.16
(d) Input Tax Credit Receivable 21.13 28.33
21.13 28.33
Total 105.44 174.53
Note:
1-(c) Other Advances and Deposits *
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
ADVANCE (XA) 0.36 0.28
TA. 1.92 0.82
MEDICAL ADVANCE 0.83 0.24
INCOME TAX UNDER PROTEST ** 68.03 38.31
OTHERS 13.38 106.76
Total 84.52 146.41
** Income tax paid under protest is Rs 68.03 crs.Out of this Rs 0.61 Cr relates to A.Y
2010-11, Rs 0.68 Cr relates to A.Y 2014-15, Rs.0.76 Cr related to AY 2016-17, Rs. 25.11
Cr relates to 2017-18, Rs.16.01 Cr relates to 2018-19, Rs. 19.13 Crore related AY 2020-21,
Rs. 5.73 Crore relates to A.Y 2021-22.

2 . Other Deposit and advances above includes Excess CSR (Refer Annexure to Note - 29 CSR Expenses)




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 12 : INVENTORIES

(X in Crore)
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
(a) Stock of Coal
Coal under Development - -
Stock of Coal (Net) - -
(b) Stock of Stores & Spares (net) 16.01 13.07
Add: Stores-in-transit - -
Net Stock of Stores & Spares 16.01 13.07

(c) Stock of Medicine at Central Hospital - -

(d)  Workshop Jobs and Press jobs

16.01 13.07
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE- 13 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Current
Trade receivables
- secured, considered good - -
- unsecured, considered good 822.40 815.90
Have significant increase in
credit risk
Credit impaired 2.58 3.35
824.98 819.25
Less : Allowance for bad & 2.58 3.35
doubtful debts
Total 822.40 815.90
As at 31.03.2023 % in Crore)
Trade Receivables ageing schedule Outstanding for following periods from
transaction date
More
Less 6 Total
Particulars than 6 |months| 1-2 | 2-3 | than
years | years 3
months | 1 year
years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 598.96 | 96.71 |[51.32 | 19.32| 58.67 824.98
good
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit
impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered
good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
Total
Unbilled dues
Allowance for bad & doubtful debts 2.58 2.58
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision) 0.31%
_ % . 0




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE- 13 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31.03.2022 & in Crore)
Trade Receivables ageing schedule Outstanding for following periods from
transaction date
More
Total
. Less | 6 | 42 | 23 | than
Particulars than 6 | months
years | years 3
months | 1 year
years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 555.08 | 113.28 [69.89 | 23.23 | 57.77 819.25
good
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit
impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered
good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
Total
Unbilled dues
Allowance for bad & doubtful debts 3.35 3.35
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision) 0.41%
-%

Trade Receivables includes dues from CIL and Subsidiaries within group % 663.85 cr. (Previous Year
% 586.10 cr.) and allowances recognised thereon Nil (Previous Year Nil). Dues from outside group include
¥161.13 cr. (Previous Year X 232.89 cr.) and allowances recognised thereon % 2.58 cr. (Previous Year
33.35cr).
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 14 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
(a) Balances with Banks
- in Deposit Accounts
- in Current Accounts
Interest Bearing (CLTD) 342.40 146.00
Non Interest Bearing 37.55 14.94
- in Cash Credit Accounts -
(b) Bank Balances outside India - -
(c) Cheques, Drafts and Stamps in hand - 0.01
(d) Cash on hand 0.01 0.02
(e) Cash on hand outside India - -
() Imprest account 0.01 -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 379.97 160.97
(9) Bank Overdraft - -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents(net of Bank Overdraft) 379.97 160.97
NOTE - 15 : OTHER BANK BALANCES
(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Balances with Banks
- Deposit accounts 90.14 40.14

- CSR fund for Ongoing projects - -
- Mine Closure Plan - -
- Shifting and Rehabilitation Fund scheme - -
- Escrow Account for Buyback of Shares - -
- Unpaid dividend accounts - -

- Dividend accounts - -

Total 90.14 40.14




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 16 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Authorised
15,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥1000/- each 150.00 150.00
150.00 150.00

Issued. Subscribed and Paid-up

(Held by Coal India Ltd., the Holding Co.

& its nominees)

8 Equity Shares of ¥ 1,000/- each fully paid

in Cash (Previous Year 8 Equity shares of

¥ 1,000/- each) - -
1322992 Equity Shares of % 1,000/- each

allotted as fully paid up for consideration received 132.30 132.30
other than cash (Previous Year 275792 Equity

Shares of % 1,000/- each)

105000 Equity Shares of ¥ 1000/- each

allotted as fully paid for Cash to Holding Company 10.50 10.50

by converting loan in equity

Total 142.80 142.80

1 Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares held % of Total
(Face value of 1000 Shares
each)
Coal India Limited 1,428,000 100%

2 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period:-

Particular Number of Share Amount Rs. cr.
Balance as on 01.04.2021 1,428,000 142.80
Addition During the F.Y 2021-22

Balance as on 01.04.2022 1,428,000 142.80

Change during the year - -
Balance as on 31.03.2023 1,428,000 142.80
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Non-Current

Term Loans
- From Banks

- From Other Parties

Loans from Related Parties

Other Loans
Total

CLASSIFICATION

Secured

Unsecured

Current

Loans repayable on demand
- From Banks

- From Other Parties

Loans from Related Parties

Other Loans

Total
CLASSIFICATION

Secured

Unsecured

NOTE 18: BORROWINGS

As at 31.03.2023

(% in Crore)

As at 31.03.2022
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 19 :TRADE PAYABLES

Current

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

As at 31.03.2023

(% in Crore)

As at 31.03.2022

Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 145.33 150.94
Total 145.33 150.94
Trade payables - Total outstanding dues of Micro & Small enterprises
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
a) Principal & Interest amount remaining unpaid but not due . .
) Nil Nil
as at period end
b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of
Micro , Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, Nil Nil
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the period
c) Interst due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest Nil Nil
specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006,
d) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at period end Nil Nil
e) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years , until such date when the interest dues Nil Nil
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise

As at 31.03.2023

Trade Payables aging schedule

Outstanding for following periods from transaction date

Particulars

Less than 1 year

1-2 Years

2-3 years | More than 3 years | Total

i) MSME

ii) Others

133.14

12.05

0.14 145.33

iii) Disputed dues -MSME

iv) Disputed dues -Others

v) Unbilles dues
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 19 :TRADE PAYABLES
As at 31.03.2022

Trade Payables aging schedule Outstanding for following periods from transaction date

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years | More than 3 years | Total
i) MSME
ii) Others 150.81 0.13 150.94

iii) Disputed dues -MSME

iv) Disputed dues -Others

v) Unbilles dues
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 20 : OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

Non Current
Security Deposits 71.67 78.30
Others
Total 71.67 78.30
Current
Surplus fund from Subsidiaries -
Current Account with -

- Subsidiaries -

-1ICM 0.20 -
Current maturities of long-term debt - -
Unpaid dividends - -
Security Deposits 26.08 15.46
Earnest Money 2.9 2.29
Payable for Capital Expenditure 14.44 8.95
Liability for Employee Benefits 39.22 38.98
Others 5.24 7.44

Total 88.09 73.12
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 21 : PROVISIONS

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Non Current
Employee Benefits
- Gratuity * - 4477
- Leave Encashment ** 0.72 0.26
- Post Retirement Medical Benefits *** 3.87 38.83
- Other Employee Benefits 5.41 4.89
Site Restoration/Mine Closure - -
Stripping Activity Adjustment - -
Others 0.01 0.01
Total 10.01 88.76
Current
Employee Benefits
- Gratuity * 4.17 21.74
- Leave Encashment ** 8.55 8.01
- Post Retirement Medical Benefits *** 5.97 8.06
- Ex- Gratia 16.47 14.08
- Performance Related Pay 114.35 84.46
- Other Employee Benefits 85.21 8.53
234.72 144.88
Site Restoration/Mine Closure - -
Excise Duty on Closing Stock of Coal - -
Others -
Total 234.72 144.88
Note :

* Gratuity Liabilities is netted off to the extent Rs 150.83 Cr.

*** Post Retirement Medical Benefit Liability is netted off to the extent Rs 78.48 Cr

** Leave Encashment Liabilities is netted off of to the extent Rs 99.35 Cr.

Pending finalization of the National Coal wage agreement (NCWA-XI) for non Executives considering
the total impact of the increase in all elements of salary & Wages an estimated provision of Rs 83.87/-
crores @ Rs 19,100/~ per employee (Non Executive) per month has been recognised for the period
from 01.07.2021 to 31.03.2023.
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 22 :OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31.03.2023

(% in Crore)

As at 31.03.2022

Shifting & Rehabilitation Fund
Deferred Income -
Others

Total -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 23: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31.03.2023

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2022

Statutory Dues:

Statutory Dues 80.33 76.92
Advance for Coal Import - -
Advance from customers / others 3.23 1.83
Cess Equalization Account - -
*Others liabilities 46.67 62.24
Total 130.23 140.99

* Other Liabilities includes funds received from Ministry of Coal & Ministry of Mines. It includes bills passed but payments
not made due to fund receivable is awaited from Ministry.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 24 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(% in Crore)
For the Year For the Year
ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
A. Sales of Services 1,637.76 1,426.33
Less -.Statutory Levies 251.67 217.90
Net Sales (A) * 1,386.09 1,208.43
B.Other Operating Revenue
Subsidy for Sand Stowing & Protective - -
Facilitation charges for coal import - -
Loading and additional transportation charges - -
Less: Statutory Levies (excluding Excise) - -
Evacuation facilitating Charges - -
Less: Statutory Levies - -
Revenue from services - -
Less: Statutory Levies - -
Other Operating Revenue (B) - -
Revenue From Operations (A+B) 1,386.09 1,208.43

*Sales includes services to CIL and Subsidiaries within Group Gross amount Rs 1352.58 Crores
(Previous year Rs 1145.94. crores) and levies thereon Rs 206.48 Crores (Previous Year Rs
174.80 crores); Services outside group includes Gross Rs.285.18 crores (Previous year
Rs 280.39 crores) and levies thereon recognised Rs 45.19 Crores (Previous year Rs 43.10
crores).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 25 : OTHER INCOME

(X in Crore)
For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Interest Income 7.47 4.13
Dividend Income - -
Others
Apex charges - -
Profit on Sale of Assets 0.02 -
Gain on Foreign exchange Transactions 0.02 0.03
Lease Rent - -
Liability / Provision Write Backs 0.77 1.13
Misc. Income 4.41 24.54

Total 12.69 29.83
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 26 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

(Xin Crore)
For the Year For the Year
ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Explosives 0.02
Timber -
Oil & Lubricants 16.60 18.14
HEMM Spares 0.30 -
Other Consumable Stores & Spares 16.19 15.46
Total 33.09 33.62
NOTE 27 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE
(% in Crore)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Opening Stock of Coal
Add: Adjustment of opening stock - -
Less: Deterioration of Coal - -

Closing Stock of Coal - -
Less: Deterioration of Coal - -

A. Change in Inventory of Coal - -
and WIP - -
Add: Adjustment of Opening Stock - -
Less: Provision - -

and WIP - -
Less: Provision - -

B. Change in Inventory of workshop - -
Press Opening Job

i) Finished Goods - -

ii) Work in Progress - -

Less: Press Closing Job
i) Finished Goods - -
ii) Work in Progress - -

C.Change in Inventory of Closing Stock of Press Job - -

Change in Inventory of Stock in trade (A+B+C) - -
{Decretion / ( Accretion)}
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 28 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(X in Crore)
For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Salary and Wages (incl. Allowances and Bonus etc.) 554.48 434.05
Contribution to P.F. & Other Funds 122.87 119.03
Staff welfare Expenses 20.98 17.74
Total 698.33 570.82

Pending finalization of the National Coal wage agreement (NCWA-XI) for non Executives considering the total
impact of the increase in all elements of salary & Wages an estimated provision of Rs 83.87/- crores @
Rs 19,100/- per employee (Non Executive) per month has been recognised for the period from 01.07.2021
to 31.03.2023.

NOTE 29 : CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENSE

(% in Crore)
For the Year For the Year
ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
CSR Expenses 7.30 6.86

Total 7.30 6.86
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 29 (Contd.)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENSE

Annexure To Note 29 : CSR Expenses

(X in Crore)

A. Activity wise break-up of CSR Expenses (including Excess Spent) :

For the year
ended 31.03.2023

For the year
ended 31.03.22

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition

4.51

4.93

Promoting education, including special education and

employment enhancing vocation skills

3.01

0.80

Gender equality and measures for reducing inequalities faced
by socially and economically backward groups

0.07

0.47

Environmental sustainability

0.99

0.62

Protection of national heritage, art and culture

Benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their
dependents

Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports,
Paralympic sports and Olympic sports

Contribution to fund set up by the Central government for socio
economic development

Contribution to incubators or research and development projects

Contributions to Universities and Research Institutes

Rural development projects

Slum area development

Admin Expenditure

0.34

0.04

Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and
reconstruction activities

Total

8.92

6.86

B. CSR required to be spent and CSR Expenditure Break-up

(% in Crore)

(a) Amount Required to be spent during the year

7.30

6.61

(b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year

10.00

7

(c) Amount spent during the year on:

(i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset

Nil

Nil

(i) on purposes other than (i) above

Nil

Nil

Total
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C. Reconciliation of CSR Expenses recognised and CSR Expenses spent

(% in Crore)
2022-23 2021-22
CSR Expenses Spent 8.92 6.86
Less: Excess carried forward/(Utilised) during the year 1.62 )
Add: Unspent CSR expense on ongoing projects
Add: Unspent CSR expense on other than ongoing
Amount recognised in P&L 7.30 6.86
D. Unspent amount Other than ongoing Project [Section 135(5)]
2022-23 2021-22
Opening Balance - -
Deposited in specific fund of sch. VII within 6 months - -
Amount required to be spent during the year - -
Amount Spent During the year - -
E. Excess amount spent [Section 135(5)] @ in Crore)
Amount Amount
Opening required to spent Closing
Year wise Details B be spent h
alance duri during the Balance
uring the
year
year
2020-21 - 4.65 4.66 0.01
2021-22 - 6.61 6.86 0.25
2022-23 - 7.30 8.92 1.62
Total
Refer footnote to Other Advances and Deposits under Note -11 : Other Current Assets
F. Unspent Ongoing Project [Section 135(6)] (year-wise)
Opening balance With Company 2022-23 2021-22

In Separate CSR Account

Amount required to be spent during the year

Amount spent during the year from companies bank account

In Separate CSR Account

Closing balance With Company

In Separate CSR Account




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

G. Provision for Liability of CSR Expenses (Z in Crore)
2022-23
Opening Balance 0.90
Addition during the period 4.16
Adjustment during the year 1.90
Closing Balance 3.16
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 30 : REPAIRS

(% in Crore)
For the Year For the Year
ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Building 14.96 8.51
Plant & Machinery 12.28 10.01
Others 4.09 2.74

Total 31.33 21.26
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 31 : CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES

For the Year

(% in Crore)

For the Year

ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Transportation Charges : 769
Hiring of Plant and Equipments 16 2
Other Contractual Work ' ]
118.64 145.87
CMPDI Contractual expenses
142.75 145.87
Total
NOTE 32 : FINANCE COSTS
(% in Crore)
For the Year For the Year
ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Interest Expenses
Borrowings - -
Unwinding of discounts 0.09 0.07
Others - -
Total 0.09 0.07
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 33 : PROVISIONS

For the Year

(X in Crore)

For the Year

ALLOWANCE/PROVISION MADE FOR

Doubtful debts

Stores & Spares
Others
Total

ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Doubtful Advances & Claims - -
0.04 -
0.04 -
NOTE 34 : WRITE OFF ( Net of past provisions)
(X in Crore)
For the Year For the Year
ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Doubtful debts

Less :- Provided earlier
Grade Variance
Doubtful advances
Less :- Provided earlier

Stock of Coal
Less :- Provided earlier

Others
Less :- Provided earlier

Total
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 35 : OTHER EXPENSES

(% in Crore)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Travelling expenses 22.24 13.93
Training Expenses 1.75 1.76
Telephone & Internet 3.99 4.76
Advertisement & Publicity 1.56 1.31
Freight Charges - -
Demurrage - -
Security Expenses 24.89 20.27
Service Charges of CIL - -
Legal Expenses 0.32 0.08
Consultancy Charges 1.28 0.81
Under Loading Charges - -
Loss on Sale/Discard/Surveyed of Assets - -
Auditor's Remuneration & Expenses

- For Audit Fees 0.09 0.08

- For Taxation Matters - 0.04

- For Other Services

- For Reimbursement of Exps. 0.28 -
Internal & Other Audit Expenses 0.96 1.00
Rehabilitation Charges -
Lease Rent & Hiring Charges 15.12 13.10
Rates & Taxes 1.24 1.34
Insurance 0.44 0.33
Loss on Exchange Rate Variance 0.05 0.06
Other Rescue/Safety Expenses -
Siding Maintenance Charges - -
R & D expenses 0.04 -
Environmental & Tree Plantation Expenses 2.66 1.75
Donations, Rewards & Grant 0.01
Miscellaneous expenses 9.67 7.53

Total 86.59 68.15
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Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 36 : Tax Expense
(% in Crore)

For the Year ended For the Year ended

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Current Year 76.00 75.03
Deferred tax 9.07 8.89
Earlier Years (14.78) -
Total 70.29 83.92

Reconciliation of tax Expenses and the For the year For the year
accounting profit ended 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022
Profit Before Tax 366.95 366.04
At income tax rate of 25.168% 92.35 92.12
less Tax on allowable expenses 55.57 23.45
Add: Tax on non deductible expenses 39.22 6.36
Income Tax Expenses as per normal (A) 76.00 75.03
Income tax under MAT provision(Sec 115JB) (B) - -
Tax Payable higher of A/B 76.00 75.03
MAT credit entitlement - -
Deferred tax 9.07 8.89
Tax for earlier years (14.78) -
Income tax expenses reported in statement of profit & loss 70.29 83.92
Effective income tax rate: 19.16 22.93
Deferred tax liability relates to following: 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

A. Deferred Tax Assets:

Provision for Doubtful Advances, Claims & Debts 0.65 0.85
Employee Benefits 68.05 75.75
Others (Includes taxable losses) 0.05 0.04
TOTAL OF (A) 68.75 76.64
B. Deferred Tax Liability:

Related to Fixed Assets 10.86 9.67
Others -
TOTAL OF (B) 10.86 9.67
C. Net Deferred Tax Assets (A-B) 57.89 66.97
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 37 : Other Comprehensive Income

(X in Crore)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(A)(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 25.95 26.65
25.95 26.65
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 6.53 6.71
6.53 6.71
Total (A) 19.42 19.94
(B)(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Share of OCl in Joint ventures -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss
Share of OCl in Joint ventures - -
Total (B) -
Total (A+B) 19.42 19.94

Income tax on remeasurement of defined benefit plans includes current tax ¥ 6.53 crores for the period ended
31.03.2023 (for the year ended 31.03.2022 ¥ 6.71 crores)




¢

Annual Report & Accounts 2022-23

Note 1 : CORPORATE INFORMATION

Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited (CMPDIL) was incorporated under the Indian
Companies Act, 1956 to provide consultancy support in coal and mineral exploration including
geological, geophysical, hydrological and environmental data generation to CIL and its Subsidiaries
and to other outside companies. CMPDIL is a Schedule 'B' / Miniratna-Cat-l CPSE under the
administrative control of Ministry of Coal. CMPDIL is a 100% subsidiary of Coal India Ltd. (CIL). Its
Registered office is situated at Gondwana Place, Kanke Road, Ranchi - 834 031, Jharkhand, India.
The authorized and paid up share capital of the Company is Rs. 150 crore and Rs. 142.80 crore
respectively as on March 31, 2023.

Note 2 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (“The
Act”) (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis of measurement, except
for

e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.
e Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value.
e Inventories at Cost or NRV whichever is lower.

2.1.1 Rounding of amounts
Amounts in these financial statements have, unless otherwise indicated, have been rounded
off to the ‘rupees in crore’ up to two decimal points.

2.2 Current and Non-current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-
current classification.
An asset is treated as current when:

(a) It expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating
cycle;

(b) It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) It expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(d) The asset is cash or a cash equivalent (as defined in Ind AS 7) unless the asset is
restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:
(a) It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;

(b) It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
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(d) It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect
its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The principles in Ind AS 115 are applied using the following five steps:
Step 1 : Identifying the contract:

The Company account for a contract with a customer only when all of the following criteria are
met:

a) The parties to the contract have approved the contract and are committed to perform
their respective obligations;

b) The Company can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be
transferred;

c) The Company can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;

d) The contract has commercial substance (i.e. the risk, timing or amount of the Company’s
future cash flows is expected to change as a result of the contract); and

e) it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled
in exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer. The
amount of consideration to which the Company will be entitled may be less than the
price stated in the contract if the consideration is variable because the Company may
offer the customer a price concession, discount, rebates, refunds, credits or be entitled
to incentives, performance bonuses, or similar items.

Combination of contracts

The Company combines two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the
same customer (or related parties of the customer) and account for the contracts as a single
contract if one or more of the following criteria are met:

a) The contracts are negotiated as a package with a single commercial objective;

b) The amount of consideration to be paid in one contract depends on the price or
performance of the other contract; or

c) The goods or services promised in the contracts (or some goods or services promised in
each of the contracts) are a single performance obligation.
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Contract modification

The Company account for a contract modification as a separate contract if both of the following
conditions are present:

a) The scope of the contract increases because of the addition of promised goods or
services that are distinct and

b) The price of the contract increases by an amount of consideration that reflects the
company’s stand-alone selling prices of the additional promised goods or services and
any appropriate adjustments to that price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

Step 2 : Identifying performance obligations:

At contract inception, the Company assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with
a customer and identify as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer
either:

a) A good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct; or

b) A series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that have the
same pattern of transfer to the customer.

Step 3 : Determining the transaction price

The Company consider the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to
determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to
a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The consideration promised
in a contract with a customer may include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both.

When determining the transaction price, a Company consider the effects of all of the following:

- Variable consideration;

- Constraining estimates of variable consideration;

- The existence of significant financing component;

- Non — cash consideration;

- Consideration payable to a customer.

An amount of consideration can vary because of discounts, rebates, refunds, credits,
price concessions, incentives, performance bonuses, or other similar items. The promised

consideration can also vary if the Company’s entitlement to the consideration is contingent on
the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future event.

In some contracts, penalties are specified. In such cases, penalties are accounted for as per
the substance of the contract. Where the penalty is inherent in determination of transaction
price, it forms part of variable consideration.

The Company includes in the transaction price some or all of an amount of estimated variable
consideration only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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The Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a
significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between
when it transfers a promised Goods or Service to a customer and when the customer pays for
that good or service will be one year or less.

The Company recognizes a refund liability if the Company receives consideration from a
customer and expects to refund some or all of that consideration to the customer. A refund
liability is measured at the amount of consideration received (or receivable) for which the
company does not expect to be entitled (i.e. amounts not included in the transaction price).
The refund liability (and corresponding change in the transaction price and, therefore, the
contract liability) is updated at the end of each reporting period for changes in circumstances.

After contract inception, the transaction price can change for various reasons, including the
resolution of uncertain events or other changes in circumstances that change the amount
of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the promised
goods or services.

Step 4 : Allocating the transaction price:

The objective when allocating the transaction price is for the Company to allocate the transaction
price to each performance obligation (or distinct Good or Service) in an amount that depicts
the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring the promised goods or services to the customer.

To allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis, the Company determines the stand-alone selling price at contract inception
of the distinct Good or Service underlying each performance obligation in the contract and
allocate the transaction price in proportion to those stand-alone selling prices..

Step 5 : Recognizing revenue:

The Company recognizes revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or service to a customer. A Good or Service is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that Good or Service.

The Company transfers control of a Good or Service over time and, therefore, satisfies a
performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
company’s performance as the Company performs;

b) The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced;

c) The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

For each performance obligation satisfied over time, the Company recognizes revenue over
time by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.

The Company applies a single method of measuring progress for each performance obligation
satisfied over time and the Company applies that method consistently to similar performance
obligations and in similar circumstances. At the end of each reporting period, the Company
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re-measure its progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation satisfied
over time.

Company apply output methods to recognize revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value to the customer of the goods or services transferred to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract. Output methods include methods such as
surveys of performance completed to date, appraisals of results achieved, milestones reached,
time elapsed and units produced or units delivered.

As circumstances change over time, the Company update its measure of progress to reflect
any changes in the outcome of the performance obligation. Such changes to the Company’s
measure of progress is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate in accordance with
Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time only if
the Company can reasonably measure its progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation. When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the company
recognize as revenue the amount of the transaction price (which excludes estimates of variable
consideration that are constrained that is allocated to that performance obligation.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Company satisfies the performance
obligation at a point in time. To determine the point in time at which a customer obtains control of
a promised good or service and the Company satisfies a performance obligation, the Company
consider indicators of the transfer of control, which include, but are not limited to, the following:
a) The Company has a present right to payment for the good or service;

b) The customer has legal title to the good or service;

c) The Company has transferred physical possession of the good or service;

d) The customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the good or service;
e) The customer has accepted the good or service.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Company present the contract in the
balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between

the Company’s performance and the customer’s payment. The Company present any
unconditional rights to consideration separately as a receivable.

Contract assets:

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables:

Areceivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities:

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer Goods or Services to a customer for which
the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
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customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers Goods or Services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment made or due (whichever
is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under
the contract.

Interest
Interest income is recognised using the Effective Interest Method.
Dividend

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights to receive payment is
established.

Other Claims

Other claims (including interest on delayed realization from customers) are accounted for,
when there is certainty of realisation and can be measured reliably.

Grants from Government

Government Grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs against which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government Grants related to assets are presented in the Balance Sheet by setting up the
grant as deferred income.

Grants related to income (i.e. grant related to other than assets) are presented as part of
Statement of Profit or Loss under the general heading ‘Other Income’.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future
related costs, is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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Company as a lessee

At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise a right-of-use asset at cost and a
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date
for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset is of
low value.

Subsequently, right-of-use asset is measured using cost model whereas, the lease
liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and
re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications.

Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of another asset applying other
applicable standards.

Right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset, if the lease transfers
ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the
right-to-use asset reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option. Otherwise,
the lessee shall depreciate the right-to-use asset from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term

Company as a lessor
All leases are either an operating lease or a finance lease.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset

Operating leases - lease payments from operating leases are recognised as income
on either a straight-line basis unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the pattern in which benefit from the use of the underlying asset is diminished.

Finance leases - assets held under a finance lease is initially recognised in its Balance
Sheet and present them as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in
the lease using the interest rate implicit in the lease to measure the net investment in
the lease.

Subsequently, finance income is recognised over the lease term, based on a pattern
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Land is carried at historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure which are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the land like, rehabilitation expenses, resettlement cost
and compensation in lieu of employment incurred for concerned displaced persons
etc.

After recognition, an item of all other Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at
its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
under Cost. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises:
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Its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates.

Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item
is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for
purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that is significant
in relation to the total cost of the item depreciated separately. However, significant
part(s) of an item of PPE having same useful life and depreciation method are grouped
together in determining the depreciation charge.

Costs of the day to-day servicing described as for the ‘Repairs and Maintenance’ are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the same are
incurred.

Subsequent cost of replacing parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are
recognised in the carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the group; and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognised
in accordance with the derecognition policy mentioned below.

When major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item of Property, Plant and Equipment as a replacement if it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group; and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the
previous inspection (as distinct from physical parts) is derecognised.

An item of Property, Plant or Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from the continued use of assets. Any gain
or loss arising on such derecognition of an item of Property Plant and Equipment is
recognised in Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment, except freehold land, is provided as
per cost model on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the asset as
follows:

Other Land

(Incl. Leasehold Land) . Life of the project or lease term whichever is lower
Building . 3-60 years

Roads . 3-10 years

Telecommunication :  3-9years

Plant and Equipment . b-15years

Computers and Laptops : 3 Years

Office equipment . 3-6 years
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Furniture and Fixtures . 10 years
Vehicles . 8-10 years

Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives given above
best represents the period over which the management expects to use the asset. Hence the
useful lives of the assets may be different from useful lives as prescribed under Part C of
Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful life of the assets is reviewed at the end of each financial year.

The residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment is considered as 5% of the original cost
of the asset.

Depreciation on the assets added / disposed of during the year is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the month of addition / disposal.

Right to Fair Compensation and Transparency in Land Acquisition, Rehabilitation and
Resettlement (RFCTLAAR) Act, 2013, Long term transfer of government land etc, which is
amortised on the basis of the balance life of the project, and in case of Leasehold land such is
amortisation is based on lease period or balance life of the project whichever is lower.

Fully depreciated assets, retired from active use are disclosed separately as surveyed off
assets at its residual value under Property, Plant and Equipment are tested for impairment.

Capital Expenses incurred by the company on construction/development of certain assets
which are essential for production, supply of goods or for the access to any existing Assets of
the company are recognised as Enabling Assets under Property, Plant and Equipment.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company elected to continue with the carrying value as per cost model (for all of its
Property, Plant and Equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of
transition to Ind ASs, measured as per the previous GAAP

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation (calculated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives) and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised.
Instead, the related expenditure is recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

2.8

2.9

291
291

2.9.2

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortised but is tested for impairment at
each reporting date.

Gains orlosses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that
an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Company considers
individual mines as separate cash generating units for the purpose of test of impairment.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

*  Debt instruments at amortised cost
*  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

*  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

* Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)




2.9.2.1 Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

2.9.2.2 Impairment of financial assets (other than fair value)

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.,
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI.
c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17.

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

2.9.3 Financial liabilities

2.9.3.1 Initial recognition and measurement

The Company financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts.

254
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Allfinancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred
to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category
generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
shall be recognised in profit or loss.

2.9.4 Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
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instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company operations. Such changes are evident to external
parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases
to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the
first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains
or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification | classification
Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in P&L.
FVTPL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying
Cost amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount.
Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between

previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No
change in EIR due to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised
cost carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCl is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured
as if it had always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying
amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain

or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to P&L at the
reclassification date.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash & Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company’s
cash management.



Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited
(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

2.10 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable
profit (tax loss) for a period. Taxable profit differs from “profit before income tax” as reported in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The company’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the company is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting year and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Employee Benefits

2.11.1 Short-term Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period
in which the employees render the related service.

All short term employee benefits are recognized in the period in which the services are rendered
by employees.

2.11.2 Post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits

2.11.21 Defined contributions plans

2122

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the company pays
fixed contribution into fund maintained by a separate and the company will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the statement of profit
and loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefits plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
Gratuity, leave encashment are defined benefit plans (with ceilings on benefits). The company’s
net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return of their service in the current and prior periods. The
benefit is discounted to determine its present value and reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if
any. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as
at the reporting date that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the company’s obligations
and that are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The application of actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rate,
expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates etc. Due to the
long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to uncertainties. The calculation is
performed at each balance sheet by an actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in to the benefit to the company, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of the economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan
or reduction in future contributions to the plan. An economic benefit is available to the company
if it is realisable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of plan liabilities.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gain and losses
considering the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effects of the assets ceiling
(if any, excluding interest) are recognised immediately in the other comprehensive income.
The company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability
(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability (asset),
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related
to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit and loss.
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When the benefits of the plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to
past service by employees is recognised as expense immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

2.11.3 Other Long Terms Employee Benefits
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Other long-term employee benefits are all employee benefits other than short-term employee
benefits, post-employment benefits and termination benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits include items which are not expected to be settled wholly
before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service.

For other long-term employee benefits, net total of the following amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss:

(a) Service cost
(b) Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)

(c) Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset)

Foreign Currency

The company’s reported currency and the functional currency for majority of its operations is
in Indian Rupees (INR) being the principal currency of the economic environment in which it
operates.

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the reported currency of the company
using the exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the end of the reporting period are translated
at the exchange rates prevailing as at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising
on the settlement of monetary assets and liabilities or on translating monetary assets and
liabilities at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during
the period or in previous financial statements are recognised in statement of profit and loss in
the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are valued at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of transactions.

Inventories

2.13.1 Stores & Spares

The Stock of stores & spare parts (which also includes loose tools) at central & area stores
are considered as per balances appearing in priced stores ledger and are valued at cost
calculated on the basis of weighted average method. The inventory of stores & spare parts
lying at collieries / sub-stores / drilling camps/ consuming centres are considered at the year
end only as per physically verified stores and are valued at cost.

Provisions are made at the rate of 100% for unserviceable, damaged and obsolete stores and
spares and at the rate of 50% for stores & spares not moved for 5 years.
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2.13.2 Other Inventories
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2.16

However, Stock of stationery are not considered in inventory considering their value not being
significant.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the company, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, when the realisation
of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition
is appropriate.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per shares
is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per shares and also the weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management
to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the amount of revenue and expenses
during the reported period. Application of accounting policies involving complex and subjective
judgements and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed.
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimate are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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2.16.1 Judgements

In the process of applying the Company accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

2.16.2 Formulation of Accounting Policies

Accounting policies are formulated in a manner that result in financial statements containing
relevant and reliable information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which
they apply. Those policies need not be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

In the absence of an Ind AS that specifically applies to a transaction, other event or condition,
management has used its judgement in developing and applying an accounting policy that
results in information that is:

a) Relevant to the economic decision-making needs of users and
b) Reliable in that financial statements :

(i)  Represent faithfully the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the entity;

(i) Reflect the economic substance of transactions, other events and conditions, and
not merely the legal form;

(iii)  Are neutral, i.e. free from bias;
(iv) Are prudent; and
(v)  Are complete in all material respects on a consistent basiss

In making the judgement management refers to, and considers the applicability of, the following
sources in descending order:

a) The requirements in Ind ASs dealing with similar and related issues; and

b) The definitions, recognition criteria and measurement concepts for assets, liabilities,
income and expenses in the Framework.

In making the judgement, management considers the most recent pronouncements of
International Accounting Standards Board and in absence thereof those of the other standard-
setting bodies that use a similar conceptual framework to develop accounting standards, other
accounting literature and accepted industry practices, to the extent that these do not conflict
with the sources in above paragraph.

The group operates in the mining sector (a sector where the exploration, evaluation,
development production phases are based on the varied topographical and geomining terrain
spread over the lease period running over decades and prone to constant changes), the
accounting policies whereof have evolved based on specific industry practices supported by
research committees and approved by the various regulators owing to its consistent application
over the last several decades. In the absence of specific accounting literature, guidance and
standards in certain specific areas which are in the process of evolution. The group continues
to strive to develop accounting policies in line with the development of accounting literature
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2.16.3

and any development therein shall be accounted for prospectively as per the procedure laid
down above more particularly in Ind AS 8.

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis using accrual basis of accounting
Materiality

Ind AS applies to items which are material. Management uses judgement in deciding whether
individual items or groups of item are material in the financial statements. Materiality is judged
by reference to the nature or magnitude or both of the item. The deciding factor is whether
omitting or misstating or obscuring an information could individually or in combination with
other information influence decisions that primary users make on the basis of the financial
statements. Management also uses judgement of materiality for determining the compliance
requirement of the Ind AS. Further, the Company may also be required to present separately
immaterial items when required by law.

W.e.f 01.04.2019 Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are
treated as immaterial and adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in
aggregate does not exceed 1% of total revenue from Operation (net of statutory levies) as per
the last audited financial statement of the company.

2.16.3.1 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

2.16.3.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

There is an indication of impairment if, the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. Group considers individual mines as separate cash generating units for the
purpose of test of impairment. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The
cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will
enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive
to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and
the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to other
mining infrastructures. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the
different CGUs, are disclosed and further explained in respective notes.

2.16.3.3 Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
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be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 38.

2.16.3.4 Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates.

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining
the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables of the country. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes.

2.16.3.5 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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NOTE - 38 ADDITIONAL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31st March, 2023.

1. Fair Value Measurement

(a) Financial Instruments by Category (Z in Crore)
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost

Financial Assets

Investments : - -

Preference Share in Subsidiary
- Equity Component - -
- Debt Component

Mutual Fund/ICD - -

Loans 0.06 0.08
Deposits & receivable 95.49 115.86
Trade receivables 822.40 815.90
Cash & cash equivalents 379.97 160.97
Other Bank Balances 90.14 40.14

Financial Liabilities = =

Borrowings - -
Trade payables 145.33 150.94
Security Deposit and Earnest money 100.66 96.05
Other Liabilities 60.80 56.68

(b) Fair value hierarchy

Table below shows Judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognized and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost
and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.
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(X in Crore)
Financial assets and liabilities 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
measured at fair value Level | | Levelll | Levellll | Levell | Levelll | Level i
Financial Assets at FVTPL
Investments : - - - - -
Mutual Fund/ICD - - - - -
Financial Liabilities
If any item - - - - -
(X in Crore)
Financial assets and liabilities mea 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
sured at amortised cost for which fair
values are disclosed. Level | Level Il | Levellll | Levell | Levelll Level llI
Financial Assets at FVTPL
Investments : - -
Preference Shares
- Equity Component
- Debt Component
- Other Investments = -
Loans 0.06 0.08
Deposits, receivable 95.49 115.86
Trade receivables 822.40 815.90
Cash & cash equivalents 379.97 160.97
Other Bank Balances 90.14 40.14
Financial Liabilities - -
Borrowings - -
Trade payables 145.33 150.94
Security Deposit and Earnest money 100.66 96.05
Other Liabilities 60.80 56.68

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes
mutual funds that have quoted price and are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3.This is the case for unlisted equity securities, preference shares borrowings,
security deposits, loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other liabilities/assets
taken included in level 3.
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(c) Valuation technique used in determining fair value

Valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
* The use of quoted market prices (NAV) of instruments in respect of investment in Mutual Funds
(d) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

At present there are no fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs.

(e) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

» The carrying amounts of trade receivables, short term deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

« The Company considers that the Security Deposits does not include a significant financing
component. The security deposits coincide with the company’s performance and the contract
requires  amounts to be retained for reasons other than the provision of finance. The withholding
of a specified percentage of each milestone payment is intended to protect the interest of the
company, from the contractor failing to adequately complete its obligations under the contract.
Accordingly, transaction cost of Security deposit is considered as fair value at initial recognition
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Significant estimates:The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgment to select a
method and makes suitable assumptions at the end of each reporting period.

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company principal financial liabilities, comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company operations and to provide guarantees to support
its operations. The Company principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash and cash equivalents that is derived directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Company senior management is supported by a risk
committee that advises, inter alia, on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the Company. The risk committee provides assurance to the Board of Directors that
the Company financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company policies and
risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarized below.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the
risk and the impact of hedge accounting in the financial statements
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Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit Risk | Cash and Cash equivalents, | Ageing analysis/ Department of public enterprises
trade receivables financial asset | Credit Analysis (DPE guidelines), diversification of
measured at amortised cost bank deposits credit limits and other
securities
Liquidity Borrowings and other liabilities | Periodic cash Availability of committed credit lines
Risk flows and borrowing facilities
Market Future commercial transactions, | Cash flow forecast | Regular watch and review by senior
Risk-foreign | recognized financial assets and | sensitivity analysis | management and Audit Committee.
exchange liabilities not denominated in INR
Market Cash and Cash equivalents, | Cash flow forecast | Department of public enterprises
Risk-interest | Bank deposits and mutual funds | sensitivity analysis | (DPE guidelines), Regular watch and
rate review by senior management and
audit committee.

The Company risk management is carried out by the board of directors as per DPE guidelines issued
by Government of India. The board provides written principals for overall risk management as well as
policies covering investment of excess liquidity.

A. Credit Risk: Credit risk arises when a counterparty defaults on contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the company.

Provision for Expected credit loss: Company provides for expected credit risk loss for
doubtful/ credit impaired assets, by lifetime expected credit losses (Simplified approach). Refer
Note - 13, Trade Receivables.

Significant estimates and judgments Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

B. Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities
and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, group treasury
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors forecasts of the Company liquidity position (comprising the undrawn
borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is
generally carried out at local level in the operating companies of the group in accordance with
practice and limits set by the Company.
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C. Market risk
a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional currency (INR).
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions.
Foreign exchange risk in respect of foreign operation is considered to be insignificant. The
Company also imports and risk is managed by regular follow up. Company has a policy which
is implemented when foreign currency risk becomes significant.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.

The Company main interest rate risk arises from bank deposits with change in interest rate
exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Company policy is to maintain most of its
deposits at fixed rate.

Company manages the risk using guidelines from Department of public enterprises (DPE),
diversification of bank deposits credit limits and other securities.

Capital management

The company being a government entity manages its capital as per the guidelines of Department of
investment and public asset management under ministry of finance.

Capital Structure of the company is as follows:

(% in Crore)
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Equity Share capital 142.80 142.80
Preference share capital NIL NIL
Long term debt NIL NIL

3.EmployeeBenefits:RecognitionandMeasurement(ind AS-19)

Defined Benefit Plans:
a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a post-employment defined benefit plan ("the Gratuity Scheme")
covering the eligible employees. The Gratuity Scheme is fully funded through trust maintained with
Life Insurance Corporation of India, wherein employer contribution is 2.01% of basic salary and
Dearness allowances. Gratuity payment is made as per policy of the company subject to maximum
of Rs 0.20 Crores at the time of separation from the company considering the provisions of the
Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 as amended. The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in
respect of the Gratuity Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at
each reporting date by actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized
in the year in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income (OCI).
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b) Post-Retirement Medical Benefit — Executive (CPRMSE)

Company has post-retirement medical benefit scheme known as Contributory Post Retirement
Medicare Scheme for Executive of CIL and its Subsidiaries (CPRMSE), to provide Medicare to the
executives and their spouses in Company hospital/empaneled hospitals or outpatient/Domiciliary only
in India subject to ceiling limit, on account of retirement on attaining the age of superannuation or are
separated by the Company on medical ground or retirement under Voluntary Retirement Scheme
under common coal cadre or Voluntary Retirement Scheme formulated and made applicable from
time to time. Membership is not extended to the executives who resigns from the services of the
CIL and its subsidiaries. The maximum amount reimbursable during the entire life for the retired
executives and spouse taken together jointly or severally is Rs 25 lakhs except for specified diseases
with no upper limit. The Scheme is funded through trust maintained by the CIL at group level solely
for this purpose.The liability for the scheme is recognised based on actuarial valuation done at each
reporting date.

c) Post-Retirement Medical Benefit — Non Executive (CPRMS -NE)

As a part of social security scheme under wage agreement, Company is providing Contributory
Post-Retirement Medicare Scheme for non-executives (CPRMSE-NE) to provide medical care to the
non-executives and their spouses and Divyang Child(ren) in Company hospital/empaneled hospitals
or outpatient/Domiciliary only in India subject to ceiling limit, on account of retirement on attaining
the age of superannuation or are separated by the Company on medical ground or retirement under
Voluntary Retirement Scheme formulated and made applicable from time to time or resigns from the
company at the age of 57 Years or above or on death to the spouse and Divyang Child(ren). The max-
imum amount reimbursable during the entire life for the retired non-executives, spouse and Divyang
Child(ren) taken together jointly or severally is Rs 8 lakhs except for specified diseases with no upper
limit. The Scheme is funded through trust maintained by the CIL at group level solely for this purpose.
The liability for the scheme is recognised based on actuarial valuation done at each reporting date.

Defined Contribution Plans:
a) Provident Fund and Pension

Company pays fixed contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund at pre-determined
rates based on a fixed percentage of the eligible employee's salary i.e. 12% and 7% of Basic salary
and Dearness Allowance towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund respectively. These funds are
governed by a separate statutory body under the control of Ministry of Coal, Government of India,
named Coal Mines Provident Fund Organisation (CMPFO).The contribution towards the fund for the
period is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss

b) CIL Executive Defined Contribution Pension Scheme (NPS)

The company provides a post-employment contributory pension scheme to the executives of the
Company known as “CIL Executive Defined Contribution Pension Scheme -2007” (NPS). NPS is
being administered through separate trust at group level solely formed for the purpose. The obligation
of the Company is to contribute to the trust to the extent of amount not exceeding 30% of basic pay
and dearness allowance less employer’s contribution towards provident fund, gratuity, post-retirement
medical benefits -Executive i.e. CPRMSE or any other retirement benefits. The current employer
contribution of 6.99% of basic and Dearness Allowance is being charged to statement of profit and
loss.
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Other Long Term Employee Benefits
a) Leave encashment

The company provides benefit of total Earned Leave (EL) of 30 days and Half Paid Leave (HPL) of
20 days to the executives of the company, accrued and credited proportionately on half yearly basis
on the first day of January and July of every year. During the service, 75% EL credited balance is
one time encashable in each calendar year subject to ceiling of maximum 60 days EL encashment.
Accumulated HPL is not permitted for encashment during the period of service. On superannuation,
EL and HPL together is considered for encashment subject to the overall limit of 300 days without
commutation of HPL. In case of non-executives, Leave encashment is governed by the National Coal
Wage Agreement (NCWA) and at present the workmen are entitled to get encashment of earned
leave at the rate of 15 days per year and on discontinuation of service due to death, retirement,
superannuation and VRS, the balance leave or 150 days whichever is less, is allowed for encashment.
Therefore, the liabilities for earned leave are expected to be settled during the service as well as after
the retirement of employee. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting
period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at
the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
The liability under the scheme is borne by the Company as per actuarial valuation at each reporting
date.

b) Life Cover Scheme (LCS)

As a part of social security scheme under wage agreement, the Company has Life Cover Scheme
under Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme, 1976 notified by the Ministry of Labour, Government of
India, known as “Life Cover Scheme of Coal India Limited” (LCS). An amount of Rs 1,25,000 is paid
under the scheme w.e.f 01.10.2017. The expected cost of the benefits is recognised when an event
occurs that causes the benefit payable under the scheme.

c) Settlement Allowances

As a part of wage agreement, a lump sum amount of Rs 12000/- is paid to all the non-executive
cadre employees governed under NCWA on their superannuation on or after 31.10.2010 as settling-in
allowance. The liability under the scheme is borne by the Company as per actuarial valuation at each
reporting date.

d) Group Personal Accident Insurance (GPAIS)

Company has taken group insurance scheme from United India Insurance Company Limited to cover
the executives of the company against personal accident known as “Coal India Executives Group
Personal Accident Insurance Scheme” (GPAIS). GPAIS covers all types of accident on 24 hour basis
worldwide. Premium for the scheme is borne by the Company.

e) Leave Travel Concession (LTC)

As a part of wage agreement, Non-executive employees are entitled to travel assistance for visiting
their home town and for “Bharat Bhraman” once in a block of 4 years. Alump sum amount of Rs 8000/-
and Rs 12000/- is paid for visiting Home town and “Bharat Bhraman”, respectively. The liability for the
scheme is recognised based on actuarial valuation at each reporting date.
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Funding status of defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefits plans are as
under:

(i) Funded-

e Gratuity

e | eave Encashment

e Post-Retirement Medical Benefit - Executive (CPRMSE)

e Post-Retirement Medical Benefit - Non Executive (CPRMSE-NE)

(ii) Unfunded

Life Cover Scheme

Settlement Allowance

Group Personal Accident Insurance
Leave Travel Concession

Total liability as on 31.03.2023 based on valuation made by the Actuary, details of which are mentioned

below.

(X in Crore)
Opening Actuarial | Incremental Closing Actuarial
Head Liability as on Liability during Liability as on
01.04.2022 the Year 31.03.2023

Gratuity 162.86 (7.86) 155.00
Leave Executive 81.02 3.60 84.62
Leave Non-Executive 20.00 4.00 24.00
Settlement Allowance Executives 3.95 (0.10) 3.85
Settlement Allowance Non-executives 0.50 (0.06) 0.44
Leave Travel Concession 1.78 0.68 2.46
Medical Benefits Executives 88.09 (25.97) 62.12
Medical Benefits Non-Executives 26.66 (0.46) 26.20
Total 384.86 (26.17) 358.69

(iii) Disclosure as per Actuary’s Certificate
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CERTIFICATES AS PER IND AS 19 (2015)

ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF GRATUITY LIABILITY AS AT 31.03.2023

Table 1 : (% In Crores)
31.03.2022 A Profit&Loss(P&L) 31.03.2023
14.87 Current service cost 4.90
- Past service cost - plan amendments -
- Curtailment cost / (credit) -
- Settlement cost / (credit) -
14.87 Service cost 4.90
5.64 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 2.07
- Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses — other long term -
employee benefit plans
20.51 Cost recognised in P&L 6.97
(X In Crores)
31.03.2022 B: Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI ) 31.03.2023
(11.37) Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO experience 11.00
0.72 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes (7.44)
(10.65) Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 3.56
(0.18) Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate (0.70)
(10.83) Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI 2.86
(% in Crores)
31.03.2022 C:DefinedBenefitCost 31.03.2023
14.87 Service cost 4.90
5.64 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 2.07
(10.83) Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI 2.86
- Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses — other long term -
employee benefit plans
9.67 Defined Benefit Cost 9.83
(% in Crores)
31.03.2022 D: Assumptions as at 31.03.2023
6.85% Discount Rate 7.30%

Executive: 9%
Non-Executive:

6.25%

Rate of salary increase

Executive: 9%
Non-Executive:
6.25%
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Table 2: (% in Crores)
31.03.2022 A: Development of Net Balance Sheet Position 31.03.2023
(162.86) Defined benefit obligation (DBO) (155.00)
96.35 Fair value of plan assets (FVA) 150.83
(66.51) Funded status [surplus/(deficit)] (4.17)
- Effect of Asset ceiling =
(66.51) Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) (4.17)
(X in Crores)
31.03.2022 B: Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position 31.03.2023
(107.82) Net defined benefit asset/ (liablity) at end of prior period (66.51)
(14.87) Service cost (4.90)
(5.64) Net interest on net defined benefit liabilty/ (asset) (2.07)
10.83 Amount recognised in OCI (2.86)
50.00 Employer contributions 7217
0.99 Benefit paid directly by the Company -
- Acquisitions credit/ (cost) -
- Divestitures -
- Cost of termination benefits -
(66.51) Net defined benefit asset/ (liablity) at end of current period (4.17)
(X in Crores)
31.03.2022 C: Assumptions as at: 31.03.2023
6.80% Discount Rate 7.30%

Executive: 9%

Rate of salary increase

Executive: 9%

Non Executive :

Non Executive:6.25%

6.25%
Table 3: (X In Crores)
31.03.2022 A:Change in Defined Benefit Obligation DBO) 31.03.2023
177.85 DBO at end of prior period 162.86
14.87 Current service cost 4.90
11.14 Interest cost on the DBO 10.17

Curtailment (credit)/ cost

Settlement (credit)/ cost

Past service cost - plan amendments
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- Acquisitions (credit)/ cost

(11.36) Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience 11.00
- Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions -
0.72 Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions (7.44)
(0.99) Benefits paid directly by the Company -
(29.37) Benefits paid from plan assets (26.49)
162.86 DBO at end of period 155.00
(X In Crores)
31.03.2022 B: Change in Fair Value of Assets 31.03.2023
70.03 Fair value of assets at end of prior period 96.35
- Acquisition adjustment -
5.50 Interest income on plan assets 8.10
50 Employer contributions 7217
0.19 Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate 0.70
(29.37) Benefits paid (26.49)
96.35 Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 150.83

Table 4: Additional Disclosure Information

(% in Crores)

A. Expected benefit payments for the year ending

March 31, 2024 19.05

March 31, 2025 22.93

March 31, 2026 17.50

March 31, 2027 13.07

March 31, 2028 11.62

March 31, 2029 to March 31, 2033 43.44

Beyond 10 years 278.28

B. Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 March 2024 4.89
C. Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 10 Years
D. Accrued Benefit Obligation at 31 March 2023 113.56

E. Plan Asset Information as at 31 March 2023 Percentage
Government of India Securities (Central and State) 0.00%
High quality corporate bonds (including Public Sector Bonds) 0.00%
Equity shares of listed companies 0.00%

Property 0.00%
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Cash (including Special Deposits) 0.00%
Schemes of insurance - conventional products 100.00%
Schemes of insurance - ULIP products 0.00%
Other 0.00%
F. Current and Non-Current Liability Breakup as at 31 March 2023
Current Liability 18.39
Non-Current Liability 136.61
Liability as at 31 March 2023 155.00

Table 5: Disclosure Item

Sensitivity Analysis 31.03.2023

Discount Rate Increase
Discount Rate as at 31 March 2023 7.30%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in discount rate (6.76)
Percentage Impact (4)%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in discount rate 7.44
Percentage Impact 5%

Salary Escalation Rate Increase

Executive: 9% Non

Salary Escalation Rate as at 31st March 2023 - Executive - 6.25%

Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in salary escalation rate 3.46
Percentage Impact 2%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in salary escalation rate (3.37)

Percentage Impact (2)%
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ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF LEAVE BENEFIT SCHEME AS AT 31.03.2023

CERTIFICATES AS PER IND AS 19 (2015)

Table 1:  In Crores)
31.03.2022 A. Profit & Loss (P&L) 31.03.2023
15.18 Current service cost 16.41
- Past service cost - plan amendments -
- Curtailment cost / (credit) -
- Settlement cost / (credit) =
15.18 Service cost 16.41
2.81 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) (0.14)
(4.21) Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses — other long term .39
employee benefit plans
13.78 Cost recognised in P&L 21.67
(X In Crores)
31.03.2022 B: Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI ) 31.03.2023
(4.71) Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO experience 12.18
0.59 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes (6.50)
(4.13) Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 5.68
(0.08) Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate (0.29)
- Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI -
(X In Crores)
31.03.2022 C: Defined Benefit Cost 31.03.2023
15.18 Service cost 16.41
2.81 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) (0.14)
- Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI -
(4.21) Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses — other long term 5.39
employee benefit plans
13.78 Defined Benefit Cost 21.67
31.03.2022 D: Assumptions as at 31.03.2023
6.85% Discount Rate 7.30%

Executive: 9%
Non-Executive]

6.25%

Rate of salary increase

Executive: 9%
Non-Executive:
6.25%
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Table 2:
(X In Crores)
31.03.2022 A: Development of Net Balance Sheet Position 31.03.2023
(101.02) Defined benefit obligation (DBO) (108.63)
92.75 Fair value of plan assets (FVA) 99.35
(8.27) Funded status [surplus/(deficit)] (9.27)
- Effect of Asset ceiling -
(8.27) Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) (9.27)
(X In Crores)
31.03.2022 B: Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position 31.03.2023
(87.47) Net defined benefit asset/ (liablity) at end of prior period (8.27)
(15.19) Service cost (16.41)
(2.81) Net interest on net defined benefit liabilty/ (asset) 0.14
4.21 Actuarial (losses)/ gains (5.39)
72.00 Employer contributions 20.66
20.97 Benefit paid directly by the Company -
- Acquisitions credit/ (cost) -
= Divestitures =
- Cost of termination benefits -
(8.27) Net defined benefit asset/ (liablity) at end of current period (9.27)
31.03.2022 C: Assumptions as at: 31.03.2023
6.80% Discount Rate 7.30%

Executive: 9%

Non Executive:

Rate of salary increase

Executive: 9%
Non Executive:

6.25% 6.25%
Table 3: (% In Crores)
31.03.2022 A: Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 31.03.2023
104.50 DBO at end of prior period 101.02
15.18 Current service cost 16.42
6.44 Interest cost on the DBO 6.17

Curtailment (credit)/ cost

Settlement (credit)/ cost

Past service cost - plan amendments
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Acquisitions (credit)/ cost

(4.72) Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience 12.18
- Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions -
0.59 Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions (6.50)
(20.97) Benefits paid directly by the Company -
- Benefits paid from plan assets (20.66)
101.02 DBO at end of period 108.63
(X In Crores)
31.03.2022 B:Change in Fair Value of Assets 31.03.2023
17.04 Fair value of assets at end of prior period 92.75
= Acquisition adjustment -
3.63 Interest income on plan assets 6.31
72 Employer contributions 20.66
0.08 Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate 0.29
- Benefits paid (20.66)
92.75 Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 99.35

Table 4: Additional Disclosure Information

(X in Crores)

A. Expected benefit payments for the year ending

March 31, 2024 8.86
March 31, 2025 12.58
March 31, 2026 12.08
March 31, 2027 6.72
March 31, 2028 9.44
March 31, 2029 to March 31, 2033 31.45
Beyond 10 years 262.21
B. Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 March 2023 17.77
C. Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 12 Years
D. Accrued Benefit Obligation at 31 March 2023 54.91
E. Plan Asset Information as at 31 March 2023 Percentage
Government of India Securities (Central and State) 0.00%
High quality corporate bonds (including Public Sector Bonds) 0.00%
Equity shares of listed companies 0.00%
Property 0.00%
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Cash (including Special Deposits) 0.00%
Schemes of insurance - conventional products 100.00%
Schemes of insurance - ULIP products 0.00%
Other 0.00%
F. Current and Non-Current Liability Breakup as at 31 March 2023
Current Liability 8.55
Non-Current Liability 100.08
Liability as at 31 March 2023 108.63

Table 5 : Disclosure Item

(% in Crores)

Sensitivity Analysis 31.03.2023

Discount Rate Increase
Discount Rate as at 31 March 2023 7.30%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in discount rate (5.86)
Percentage Impact (5)%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in discount rate 6.50
Percentage Impact 6%

Salary Escalation Rate Increase

Salary Escalation Rate as at 31st March 2023

Executive: 9% Non -
Executive : 6.25%

Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in salary escalation rate 6.40
Percentage Impact 6%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in salary escalation rate (5.83)
Percentage Impact (5)%

ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF POST RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFIT AS AT 31.03.2023

CERTIFICATES AS PER IND AS 19 (2015)

Table 1: (% In Crores)
31.03.2022 A. Profit & Loss (P&L) 31.03.2023
1.28 Current service cost 1.37
13.51 Past service cost - plan amendments -

- Curtailment cost / (credit)

= Settlement cost / (credit)
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14.80 Service cost 1.37

4.33 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 277

- Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses — other long term -

employee benefit plans

19.12 Cost recognised in P&L 4.14
(X In Crores)

31.03.2022 B: Other Comprehensive Income ( OCl ) 31.03.2023

(15.12) Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO experience (24.26)

7.19 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes (4.70)
(7.93) Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period (28.96)
(7.89) Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate 0.14

(15.82) Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (28.82)
(X In Crores)

31.03.2022 C: Defined Benefit Cost 31.03.2023

14.80 Service cost 1.37

4.33 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 2.77

(15.82) Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (28.82)

- Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses — other long term -

employee benefit plans

3.30 Defined Benefit Cost (24.68)

31.03.2022 D: Assumptions as at: 31.03.2023
6.80% Discount Rate 7.30%
0.00% Medical Inflation Rate 0.00%

Table 2: (X In Crores)

31.03.2022 A: Development of Net Balance Sheet Position 31.03.2023

(114.75) Defined benefit obligation (DBO) (88.32)

67.86 Fair value of plan assets (FVA) 78.48

(46.89) Funded status [surplus/(deficit)] (9.84)

o Effect of Asset ceiling o

(46.89) Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) (9.84)
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(X In Crores)

31.03.2022 B: Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position 31.03.2023
(62.42) Net defined benefit asset/ (liablity) at end of prior period (46.89)
(14.80) Service cost (1.37)

(4.33) Net interest on net defined benefit liabilty/ (asset) (2.77)
15.82 Amount recognised in OCI 28.82
18.83 Employer contributions 12.37

- Benefit paid directly by the Company -

- Acquisitions credit/ (cost) -

- Divestitures -

- Cost of termination benefits -
(46.89) Net defined benefit asset/ (liablity) at end of current period (9.84)

31.03.2022 C: Assumptions as at: 31.03.2023
6.80% Discount Rate 7.30%
0.00% Medical Inflation Rate 0.00%

Table 3: (X In Crores)
31.03.2022 A: Changein Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 31.03.2023
104.13 DBO at end of prior period 114.75

1.29 Current service cost 1.37
7.69 Interest cost on the DBO 7.58

- Curtailment (credit)/ cost -

- Settlement (credit)/ cost -

13.51 Past service cost - plan amendments -
- Acquisitions (credit)/ cost -
(15.12) Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience (24.26)
6.63 Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions -
0.56 Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions (4.70)

- Benefits paid directly by the Company -
(3.94) Benefits paid from plan assets (6.42)
114.75 DBO at end of current period 88.32
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(X In Crores)

31.03.2022 B: Change in Fair Value of Assets 31.03.2023

41.71 Fair value of assets at end of prior period 67.86

- Acquisition adjustment -

3.37 Interest income on plan assets 4.81
18.83 Employer contributions 12.37
7.89 Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate (0.14)
(3.94) Benefits paid (6.42)
67.86 Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 78.48
Table 4: Additional Disclosure Information (% in Crores)
A. Expected benefit payments for the year ending
March 31, 2024 6.19
March 31, 2025 6.49
March 31, 2026 6.85
March 31, 2027 7.06
March 31, 2028 7.16
March 31, 2029 to March 31, 2033 36.59
Beyond 10 years 156.35
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 11 years
Accrued Benefit Obligation at 31 March 2023 88.32
Table 5: Disclosure Item
Sensitivity Analysis 31.03.2023
Discount Rate Increase
Discount Rate as at 31 March 2023 7.30%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in discount rate (4.28)
Percentage Impact (5)%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in discount rate 4.70
Percentage Impact 5%
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4. Unrecognised Iltems:

a) Contingent Liabilities (Ind AS-37)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (including interest, wherever applicable)

(X in Crore)
Sl Particulars Central State CPSE | Others Total
No. Government | Government
and other
localities
Opening as on 01.04.2022 169.50 4.24 173.74
2 | Addition during the period 33.42 8.24 41.66
3 | Claims settled during the period 11.53 1.48 13.01
a. From opening balance 11.53 1.01 12.54
b.  Out of addition during the 0 0.47 0.47
period ended
R
4 | Closing as on 31.03.2023 191.39 11.00 | 202.39
Contingent Liability
(X in Crore)
ﬁ:)'_ Particulars Amount as on 31.03.2023 Ar;,lo_g;tzzszg n
1 Central Government
Income Tax 122.36 10047
Central Excise
Clean Energy Cess
Central Sales Tax
Service Tax 69.03 69.03
Others(Please Specify)
Sub-Total 191.39 169.50
2 State Government and Local Authorities
Royalty
Environment Clearance
Sales Tax/VAT
Entry Tax
Electricity Duty
MADA
Others(Please Specify)
Sub-Total




¢

Annual Report & Accounts 2022-23

3 Central Public Sector Enterprises
Arbitration Proceedings

Others(Please Specify)
Sub-Total

Suit against the company under litigation

Others: (If any)
4 Miscellaneous
Sub-Total

11.00
11.00

4.24
4.24

Grand Total

202.39

173.74

b) Commitments (Ind AS-37)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for
others is ¥ 6.77 Crores (X 6.58 Crores).
Other Commitments amounts to ¥ 167.49 Crores (X 152.18 Crores).

c) Guarantee

The Company has given Bank Guarantees of ¥ 0.14 Crore (% 0.14 Crore) for which there
is a floating charge on Current Assets of the Company.

5. Other Information

Provisions

(a)

The position and movement of various provisions except those relating to employee
benefits which are valued actuarially, as on 31.03.2023 are given below:

(X in Crore)
Provisions Opening | Addition | Write back/ |Unwinding| Closing
Balance for the Adj. of Balance
as on period For the |discounts| ason
1.04.2022 | ended period 31.03.2023
31.03.2023] ended
31.03.2023
Note I:-Property, Plan and Equipment:
Impairment of Assets :
Note 2:- Capital Work in Progress :
Against CWIP :
Note 3:- Exploration And Evaluation
Assets : Provision and Impairment:
Note 1:- Non Current Assets Held For Sale:
Provision :
Note 8:- Loans :
Other Loans :
Note 9:- Other Financial Assets:
Current Account with Subsidiaries :
Claim receivables :
Other Receivables : 0.04 0.04
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(X in Crore)

Exploratory

Note 10:- Other Non-Current Assets :

Against Security Deposit for Utilities:

Drilling Work :

Other Depo
Other Rece

Note 11:- Other Current Assets :
Advances for Revenue :
Advance Payment Against Statutory Dues:

0.20

sits: 0.05

ivables:

0.20

0.05

Note 12:-In

Stock of Coal :
Stock of Stores & Spares :

ventories :

0.16 0.04

0.20

Note 13:-Trade Receivables :
Provision for bad & doubtful debts :

3.35

(0.77)

2.58

NCWA:

NPS:

Note 21 :-Non-Current & Current Provision:
Performance related pay :

Executive Pay Revision:
Mine Closure:

84.46
7.20

65.67
76.67

4.21 39.46

(35.78)
0.00

(43.67)

114.35
83.87

b)

Authorised Share Capital

(X in Crore)

Particulars As on 31.03.23 As on 31.03.22
15,00,000 Equity Shares of 1000/- each 150.00 150.00
c) Earnings per share (Ins AS-33)
(X in Crore)
Sl. | Particulars For the year For the year
No. ended 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022
i Net proflt after tax in Rupees (Crores) attributable to 206.66 282.12
Equity Share Holders
ii) | Weighted Average no. of Equity Shares Outstanding 1428000 1428000
i) | Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share in Rupees (Face 2077.45 1975.63
value ¥ 1000- per share)
d) Related Party Disclosure (Ins AS-24)

List of Related Parties

)
1

A WO N

Sister Companies

) Eastern Coalfields Limited (ECL)

Bharat Coking Coal Limited (BCCL)
Central Coalfields Limited (CCL)
Western Coalfields Limited (WCL)

)
)
)
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Ol

) South Eastern Coalfields Limited (SECL)

) Northern Coalfields Limited (NCL)

) Mahanadi Coalfields Limited (MCL)

8) Coal India Limited (CIL) ................. Holding Company

~N O

ii) Post Employment Benefit Fundand others:

1) Coal India Employees Gratuity Fund

2) Coal Mines Provident Fund (CMPF)

3) Coal India Superannuation Benefit Fund Trust

4) Contributory Post Retirement Medicare Scheme for Non- Executives Modified
5) CIL Executive Defined Contribution Pension Trust

iii) Key Managerial Personnel

Name Designation W.e.f
Manoj Kumar Chairman-Cum-Managing Director | 04.10.2021
B. Veera Reddy Part Time Official Director 24.02.2022
Mukesh Choudhary Part Time Official Director 26.05.2020 to 07.12.2022
R N Jha Director Technical 30.01.2019
Satendra Kumar Gomasta Director Technical 25.02.2020
Shankar Nagachari Director Technical 02.09.2022
Ajay Kumar Director Technical 26.10.2022
Dr. Krishna Chandra Pandey Independent Director 10.07.2019 to 09.07.2022
Alka Panda Independent Director 10.07.2019 to 09.07.2022
Pramod Singh Chauhan Independent Director 16.10.2019 to 15.10.2022
P.K Prasad Chief Financial Officer 01.04.2021
Abhishek Mundhra Company Secretary 18.02.2016

iv) Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (X in Crore)
S| | Remuneration to CMD, Whole Time Directors, For the year For the

No.| CFO and Company Secretary ended 31.03.2023 year ended

31.03.2022
i) Short Term Employee Benefits 2.85 2.86
i) Post-Employment Benefits 0.56 0.39
iii) Other Long Term Benefits 2.43 2.39
iv) Termination Benefits - -
v) Share Based Payments - -
TOTAL 5.84 5.64
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(i) Besides above, whole time Directors have been allowed to use of cars for private journey upto
a ceiling of 1000 KMs on payment of 22000 per month as per service conditions.

(X in Crore)
SI. . For the year ended For the year ended
No. Payment to Independent Directors 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
i) Sitting Fees 0.05 0.19
Balances Outstanding of Sitting Fees.
(X in Crore)
Sl. No. | Particulars As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022
i) Amount Payable Nil Nil
ii) Amount Receivable Nil Nil

* No Trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either
severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or member.

Related Party Transactions within Group

The Company being a Government related entity is exempt from the general disclosure requirements
in relation to related party transactions and outstanding balances with the controlling Government and
another entity under same Government.

As per Ind AS 24, following are the disclosures regarding nature and amount of significant transactions.
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Transactions with Related Parties for the Year Ended 31.03.2023

(X in Crore)

Name of
Related
Parties

Loan to
Related
Parties

Loan
from
Related
Parties

Apex
Charges

Rehabi-
litation
Charges

Lease
Rent
Income

Interest
on Funds
parked by

subsidiaries

lICM
charges

Any
Other
(Sales)

Current
Account
Balances
(Payable/

Receivable)

Outstanding
Balances
(Payable/

Receivable)

Eastern
Coalfields
Limited
(ECL)

94.62

94.81

Bharat
Coking
Coal
Limited
(BCCL)

53.02

35.28

Central
Coalfields
Limited
(CCL)

192.87

146.43

Western
Coalfields
Limited
(WCL)

175.13

41.79

South
Eastern
Coalfields
Limited
(SECL)

380.01

259.37

Northern
Coalfields
Limited
(NCL)

126.57

18.55

Mahanadi
Coalfields
Limited
(MCL)

110.80

49.17

Coal
India
Limited
(CIL)

13.07

57.85

18.45

*This includes CIL R&D Fund
All the Intersubsidiary Balances has been confirmed up to 31.03.2023.However receivable from Central Coalfields
Ltd.is confirmed upto 30.09.2022.
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Transactions with Related Parties for the Year Ended 31.03.2022

(X in Crore)

Name of
Related
Parties

Loan to
Related
Parties

Loan
from
Related
Parties

Apex
Charges

Rehabi-
litation
Charges

Lease
Rent
Income

Interest
on Funds
parked by

subsidiaries

licM
charges

Any
Other
(Sales)

Current
Account
Balances
(Payable/

Receivable)

Outstanding
Balances
(Payable/

Receivable)

Eastern
Coalfields
Limited
(ECL)

92.13

106.92

Bharat
Coking
Coal
Limited
(BCCL)

56.83

43.05

Central
Coalfields
Limited
(CCL)

135.18

76.52

Western
Coalfields
Limited
(WCL)

154.68

32.77

South
Eastern
Coalfields
Limited
(SECL)

322.83

230.09

Northern
Coalfields
Limited
(NCL)

112.31

45.91

Mahanadi
Coalfields
Limited
(MCL)

89.76

33.01

Coal
India
Limited
(CIL)

7.40

53.62

17.46
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e) Taxation (Ind AS-12)

(X in Crore)
. As at As at
1) Details of Current Tax Assets 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Tax Deducted at Source & Advance Tax 175.71 312.34
Provision for Income Tax (82.54) (253.80)
Current Tax Assets (Net) 93.17 58.54

(f) Provisions made in the Accounts
Provisions made in the accounts against slow moving/non-moving/obsolete stores, claims
receivable, advances, doubtful debts etc. are considered adequate to cover possible losses.
(g) Current Assets, Loans and Advances etc.

In the opinion of the Management, assets other than fixed assets and non-current investments
have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at
which they are stated.

(h) Current Liabilities

Estimated liability has been provided where actual liability could not be measured.

(i) BalanceConfirmations

Balance confirmation/reconciliation is carried out for cash &bank balances, certain loans &
advances, long term liabilities and current liabilities. Provision is taken against all doubtful
unconfirmed balances.

(i) Value of imports on CIF basis

(X in Crore)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(i) Raw Material NIL NIL
(i) Capital Goods 2.18 6.10
(iii) Stores, Spares & Components & Others 0.05 0.23
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(K)

U)

m)
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Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency

(X in Crore)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Travelling Expenses 0.05 NIL
Training Expenses NIL NIL
Consultancy Charges NIL NIL
Interest NIL NIL
Stores and Spares NIL NIL
Capital Goods 2.18 6.10
Others 0.05 0.23
Earning in Foreign Exchange: (X in Crore)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Travelling Expenses NIL NIL
Training Expenses NIL NIL
Consultancy Charges NIL NIL
Others 0.02 0.03
Total Consumption of Stores and Spares (Refer Note No. 26)
(X in Crore)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total
consumption consumption
(i) Imported Materials 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(ii) Indigenous 33.09 100 33.62 100
(n) Disaggregated revenue information : & in Crore)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Types of goods or service
- Coal
- Others 1386.09 1208.43
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1386.09 1208.43
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Types of customers

- Power sector 43.53 14.11
- Non-Power Sector 1342.56 1194.32
- Others or services (CMPDIL)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1386.09 1208.43
Types of contract
-FSA
- E Auction
- Others 1386.09 1208.43
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1386.09 1208.43
Total Revenue 1386.09 1208.43
CIL Groups 1146.10 971.13
Outsider 239.99 237.30
Timing of goods or service
- Goods transferred at a point in time
- Goods transferred over time
- Service transferred at a point in time 394.14 450.31
- Service transferred over time 991.95 758.12
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1386.09 1208.43
Ratios
a) Current Ratio
For the year ended For the year ended Variance
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
2.67 2.69 (0.02)

The current ratio is a liquidity ratio that measures the current resources to meet its short-term
obligations. Current ratio has been calculated as Current Assets divided by Current liabilities.

b) Return on Equity ratio

For the year ended
31.03.2023

For the year ended
31.03.2022

Variance

26.81%

31.70%

(4.89)%

Equity)/2. Other Equity excludes Capital Reserve.

c) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio

Return on equity (ROE) is a measure of financial performance calculated by dividing PAT by
Average shareholders' equity. Where average shareholders' equity = (Opening Equity + Closing

For the year ended
31.03.2023

For the year ended
31.03.2022

Variance

1.69

1.41

0.28
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(p)

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)

The receivables turnover ratio is an accounting measure used to quantify a company's
effectiveness in collecting its accounts receivable, or the money owed by customers. Account
receivables Turnover = Net Credit Sales/Average trade receivables.

d) Net Capital Turnover ratio

For the year ended For the year ended Variance
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
1.39 1.40 (0.01)

Net Capital turnover is the measure that indicates organization's efficiency in relation to the
utilization of capital employed in the business and it has been calculated as a ratio of net sales
divided by the average amount of working capital during the same period. Net capital turnover
ratio = Net Sales / Working Capital

Net sales shall be calculated as total sales minus sales returns.
Working capital shall be calculated as current assets minus current liabilities.

e) Net Profit Ratio

For the year ended For the year ended Variance
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
21.40% 23.35% (1.95)%
It measures the relationship between net profit and sales of the business.
Net Profit Ratio = Net Profit / Net Sales
Net profit shall be after tax.
Net sales shall be calculated as total sales minus sales returns
f) Return on capital Employed
For The year ended For the year ended Variance
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
29.61% 36.38% (6.77)%

Return on capital employed indicates the ability of a company’s management to generate
returns for both the debt holders and the equity holders. Higher the ratio, more efficiently is the
capital being employed by the company to generate returns.

ROCE = Earnings before interest and taxes / Capital Employed
Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability

Lease

Vide Notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 30th March, 2019 Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 116, Leases has become effective for the company from 01.04.2019 replacing
Ind AS 17, Leases. The accounting policy on leases has been changed as per Ind AS 116.
The principal change of Ind AS 116, Leases is change in the accounting treatment by lessees of
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leases currently classified as operating leases. Lease agreements has given rise to the
recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for future lease payments in case of
company being lessee.

For calculation of the lease liability recognised in the balance sheet 7.30 % has been used as
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease liability commitment regarding operating lease as on 31.03.2023, discounted using above
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate were ¥1.38 Crore whereas lease liability as on 31.03.2023
recognised in the Balance sheet is %1.70 Crore.

(q9) (A) Misc. Information

i) Significant Accounting Policy

Significant accounting policy (Note-2) has been drafted to elucidate the accounting
policies adopted by the Company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind ASs) notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

ii) Recent Pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The amendments are as below:

1) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the
entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

2) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors -
This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included
amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies
from changes in accounting estimates. The Company has evaluated the amendment
and there is no impact on its financial statements.

3) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial
recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal
and offsetting temporary differences. The Company does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

iii)The Company had booked a revenue (Excl. GST) to the tune of Rs.89.51 lakh along with
margin- Rs. 6.25 Lakh and Expenditure- Rs.83.27 lakh in FY 2017-18. The said amount
was related to a drilling work carried out by Central Drilling Associate in FY 2017-18.
The Payment made in this regard was considered as excess payment made to the
contractor and matter is being pursued for recovery of the same .The Company has now
filed money suit against the contractor before the appropriate court for its realization.




Central Mine Planning & Design Institute Limited

(A subsidiary of Coal India Limited)
(B) Others

i) Previous year/period’s figures have been restated, regrouped and rearranged wherever
considered necessary.

ii) Note—1 and 2 represents Corporate information and Significant Accounting Policies
respectively, Note 3 to 23 form part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March ,2023 and 24
to 37 form part of Statement of Profit & Loss for the period ended on that date. Note —
38 represents Additional Notes to the Financial Statements.

Signature to Note 1 to 37.
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(A. Mundhra) (P. K. Prasad) (S. K. omasta) (Manoj Kumar)
Company Secretary General Manager (F) Director Chairman-Cum-

DIN-08714820 Managing Director
DIN-09225497

In terms of our report of even date attached

For K.C Tak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 000216C

Al
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( CA Anil Jain)
Date : 02" May 2023 Partner
. ; Membership No. : 079005
Place: Ranchi
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